CEYLON HOTELS CORPORATION PLC
PB 3283
No. 327, Union Place, Colombo 02
(the “Company” or “CHC”)

CIRCULAR TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Valued Shareholder/s,

Approval of a major transaction under Section 185 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

1 BACKGROUND

We refer to the Corporate Disclosure made by the Company on 23" January 2023 of the decision of the
Board of Directors of the Company to recommend to its Shareholders, the transfer of the shares owned
by the Company in United Hotels Company Limited (“UHC”) to The Kandy Hotels Company (1938) PLC
(“KHC”). The said transfer of shares in UHC will be by way of a share swap, wherein the Company will
transfer its shareholding in UHC to KHC in consideration for which KHC will issue shares in KHC to the
Company.

KHC is primarily a hotel owning company, which owns and operates Hotel Suisse and Queens Hotel, both
of which are located in Kandy. KHC also has a 50% equity ownership in the Suisse Hotel Kandy (Pvt) Ltd,
the owning company of the Radisson Hotel Kandy (formerly OZO Kandy). KHC is a public listed
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange. KHC's principal places
of business are situated at Hotel Suisse, No.30, Sangaraja Mawatha, Kandy and Queens Hotel, No.04,
Dalada Veediya, Kandy.

The Company, at present has a shareholding of 69.54% in KHC and 67.51% in UHC.

The aforementioned share swap will result in KHC acquiring the entirety of the issued shares of UHC from
its existing shareholders, thereby becoming the sole shareholder of UHC.

In consideration for the Company and the remaining shareholders of UHC transferring their shares in UHC
to KHC, KHC will issue up to 176,809,253 ordinary voting shares of KHC to such shareholders, at a per
share price of LKR 14.96/- as detailed below.



Name of Existing shares in Consideration
Shareholder of UHC UHC
Ceylon Hotels 201,130,633 Valued at LKR 3,066,157,660/-, of which,

Corporation PLC —
i.e. the Company

(i) LKR 1,164,835,549/-shall be set off by KHC

for the amount payable by the Company
to KHC;
The number of shares of KHC calculated at a per
share value of LKR 14.96/- attributable to this
sum of LKR 1,164,835,549/- is 77,863,339.
However, such shares will not be issued to CHC,
as LKR 1,164,835,549/- is set off against the
payables due from CHC to KHC.

(ii) 127,093,724 ordinary voting shares of KHC shall
be issued to the Company for the balance
consideration of LKR 1,901,322,111/, calculated
at a per share value of LKR 14.96/-

Ceylon Hotels 48,787,312 Valued at LKR 743,743,446/-, which shall be settled by
Investment (Pvt) Ltd way of issuance of 49,715,471 ordinary voting shares of
(Affiliate Company) KHC to Ceylon Hotels Investment (Pvt) Ltd., calculated at
a per share value of LKR 14.96/-

Ceylon Hotel 28 Valued at LKR 434/-, which shall be settled by way of
Holdings (Private) issuance of 29 ordinary voting shares of KHC to Ceylon
Limited Hotel Holdings (Private) Limited, calculated at a per
(Intermediary share value of LKR 14.96/-

Parent)

Estate of the Late 28 Valued at LKR 434/-, which shall be settled by way

Don Simon
Gunasekara

of issuance of 29 ordinary voting shares of KHC to the
Estate of the Late Don Simon Gunasekara, calculated
at a per share value of LKR 14.96/-




2.1.

*The Company has been informed that the Board of KHC has obtained an independent valuation report
from BDO Consulting (Pvt) Ltd., to derive an independent opinion on the valuation that is being considered
for the share swap/private placement. The above values are based on the said independent report. The
per share price of LKR 14.96 is based on adjusted net assets value of KHC as determined by the said
independent valuer, and the said price is at a premium to the closing market price on the date of the board
resolution by KHC, such date being 19" January 2023. The shareholders should note that the Board of KHC
has rounded up the per share value of KHC of LKR 14.9593 provided in the independent valuation report,
to a two (02) decimal figure value of LKR 14.96/-.

Valuation Report

The aforementioned Valuation Report will be uploaded to the website of the Colombo Stock Exchange, i.e.
www.cse.lk and a physical copy is available for examination at the registered office of the Company
situated at No.327, Union Place, Colombo 02. Please be informed that the said Report consists of several
hundreds of pages and therefore physical copies of the Report will not be dispatched with this Circular and
the Notice of Meeting, given the shortage in material in the market and printing costs associated
therewith.

** According to the independent valuation of shares obtained, the shares of KHC will be issued to the
shareholders of UHC on the basis of 1 new ordinary voting share in KHC for every 0.9813 share held in UHC,
rounded up to the nearest whole share.

In computing the number of shares to be issued in KHC, the KHC Board has considered beyond the 4 decimal
figure, in order that the number of shares issued, corresponds to the total purchase
consideration/valuation, at the per share price of Rs.14.96.

The new shares issued by KHC will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary voting shares

of KHC at the issuance of such shares. The transaction is compliant with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

SHARE SWAP/PRIVATE PLACEMENT

Overview of UHC, the company that is being acquired by KHC

United Hotels Company Limited, in which the Company presently owns 67.51% of the issued share capital,
is the owner (through leasehold rights from the Sri Lanka Tourism Development Authority), of the Ekho
Surf Hotel (Bentota), Ekho Lake House and The Lake Hotel (both located in Polonnaruwa), totaling 154
rooms combined.



UHC's fully owned subsidiary, Tissa Resort (Private) Limited (“TRP”), owns (through leasehold rights from
the Sri Lanka Tourism Development Authority) the Ekho Safari Hotel in Tissamaharama, which consists of
50 rooms.

All of the above, when combined, consist of a total room count of 204, spread across the southern belt
and Polonnaruwa District of Sri Lanka.

A listing and a brief profile of each of these hotel properties are annexed hereto as Annexure I, for the
information of the Shareholders.

The holding structure of the Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC group is annexed hereto as Annexure Il, for
the information of the Shareholders.

The financials relating to United Hotels Company are annexed, as Annexure lll, for the information of the
Shareholders.

Ceylon Hotels Maldives (Private) Limited.

In September 2022, UHC divested its remaining 50% ownership in the Maldivian investment in a hotel
project held through its fully owned subsidiary, Ceylon Hotels Maldives (Private) Limited (“CHML”), for
USD 4,493,663/-. The initial 50% divestment of the Maldivian investment took place back in 2018. Stock
market announcements in both these occasions had been made by CHML’s parent entity, Ceylon Hotels
Corporation PLC. As a result, the cash reserves of CHML including a receivable in the form of withholding
taxes from the said disposal approximates to USD 9,672,153 as at 30" September 2022, which value has
been factored in the valuation of UHC shares by the independent valuer.

Financial Position of UHC

Please refer page 50 of the independent Valuation Report of BDO Consulting (Pvt) Ltd, for the combined
net assets value attributable to UHC along with its two subsidiaries, TRL and CHML. As per the valuations
attributable, 100% equity value for UHC is LKR 4,541,643,135/-.

The fair value of the total assets of UHC reflected in the adjusted Net Asset Value of UHC is LKR
6,385,856,469/- as of 30" June 2022. A substantial component of these total assets consists of the USD
denominated cash reserves of CHML from the divestment of its Maldivian investment referred to above.
The other significant asset classes are represented by the values of leasehold rights and property, plant
and equipment.

Based on the Valuation Report, the total value of liabilities of UHC is LKR 1,844,213,334 as of 30" June
2022.



2.2

2.3.

Board of Directors of UHC

The Directors of UHC are:

Mr. Sanjeev Gardiner

Mr. Lakshman Samarasinghe
Mr. Priyantha Maddumage
Mr. Kuvera De Zoyza

Mr. Mangala Boyagoda

Mr. Revantha Devasurendra

Mr. Shalike Karunasena (alternate to Mr. Priyantha Maddumage)

Benefits to Existing Shareholders

With the proposed acquisition, the Company will increase its shareholdings in KHC from 69.54% to 70.09%
and as a result, the Board of Directors expects the said transaction to deliver the following benefits to
the existing shareholders of Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC:

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

™

With this transaction, the key hotel properties of CHC Group (except for the rest houses owned by
CHC Rest Houses (Pvt) Ltd in which CHC owns 50%) will be brought under the single umbrella of
KHC, thus positioning KHC as the Hotel owning segment of the CHC Group.

This would, therefore, result in streamlining the CHC Group structure, and enhancing its visibility.

Create economies of scale and greater synergies by combining common resources, including,
access to the significant cash pool available at UHC Group, (which are primarily derived from the
disposal of the investment in the Maldives as per market announcements made previously by the
Company), for future development of the properties and/or to channel these reserves into higher
Return on Investment properties to enhance the overall value of the CHC Group.

Post transfer of UHC to KHC, CHC would derive value through KHC as a much larger, much more
attractive hotel owning company with a stronger balance sheet with a combined post restructure
Net Asset Value of over LKR 11 billion (based on the independent valuation report of BDO
Consulting (Pvt) Ltd.), with the opportunity for greater economies of scale.

Strategy wise, this would also allow CHC to focus on lateral expansion of the group along the leisure
value chain and to accommodate future investments.

Pre Share Swap/Private Placement Group Structure

Please see Annexure Il.



2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

3.1

Post Share Swap/Private Placement Group Structure

Please see Annexure IV.

Combined Net Assets Value - Post Share Swap/Private Placement

The post restructure combined Net Asset Value as per the valuation report is LKR 11,284,119,859/-.

Use of proceeds from Share Swap/Private Placement

There will be no proceeds raised as a result of the share swap/private placement, and as such the
consideration will be in the form of issuance of shares of KHC to the Company as described in Section 1
above and a set off of an outstanding amount due from the Company to KHC, as mentioned above.

Price at which the Shares will be Issued and Selection of Value for the Share Swap

The shares of KHC will be issued at the price of LKR 14.96/- per share, which is the adjusted net asset value
per share of KHC.

Major Transaction under Section 185 of the Companies Act

The Company’s acquisition of/subscription to shares in KHC by way of the share swap/private placement
as detailed in the table under Section 1 above, valued at LKR 3,066,157,660/-, amounts to a Major
Transaction in terms of Section 185(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. As such, approval of the
Shareholders of the Company, by way of a Special Resolution, is required to effect the said share swap.

Applicability of the Takeover and Mergers Code 1995

The swap of shares described in this Circular does not trigger any provisions of the Takeovers and Mergers
Code 1995 (as amended).

Other Information

Overview of the Related Party Transaction Review Committee (RPTRC)

Name Position Director Position
Kuvera De Zoysa Chairman Independent Non-Executive
Director
Ranil Pathirana Committee Member Non Independent Non-Executive
Director




3.2,

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Mangala Boyagoda Committee Member Independent Non-Executive
Director

The Kandy Hotels Company (1938) PLC is a related party of the Company and therefore the transaction as
described above amounts to a non-recurrent related party transaction under Rule 9.1.1. of the Listing
Rules of the CSE.

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee has reviewed the transaction and was of the view that
the said transaction is on normal commercial terms and is not prejudicial to the interests of the Company
and its minority shareholders, as detailed further in the market announcement made by the Company on
23" January 2023.

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee has noted the independent valuation exercise carried
out by BDO Consulting (Pvt) Ltd. and is satisfied with the overall process carried out in relation to the

pricing analysis for the share swap/private placement.

Regulatory and Shareholder Approvals

The aforementioned transaction amounts to a non-recurrent Related Party Transaction between the
Company and KHC. The total value of the Related Party Transaction is LKR 3,066,157,660/-. In terms of
Rule 9.1.1 of the Listing Rules of the CSE, this transaction exceeds 1/3 of the total assets of the Company
and therefore requires shareholder approval by way of a special resolution to effect the transaction.

GENERAL

The share swap which results in a private placement in KHC is subject to KHC obtaining approval of the
CSE and the SEC to effect the same.

The requisite shareholder resolution to give effect to the above is set out in the attached Notice of
Meeting convening the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) (Annexure V) to be held for that purpose.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting in person are requested to complete the enclosed
Form of Proxy (Annexure VI) in accordance with the instructions specified therein, and deposit at the
registered office of the Company at No.327, Union Place, Colombo 02.

Auditor’s Reports and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and subsequent
interim financial statements of the Company upto the quarter ended 31 December 2022, are available
on the website of the CSE, www.cse.lk.

The shares issued in KHC by way of the aforementioned Private Placement will be uploaded directly to the
CDS accounts of the respective parties.



5.1.

5.2.

DECLARATIONS

The listing of the shares by the Colombo Stock Exchange will in no way be reflective of the merits of the
issue. The Colombo Stock Exchange assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements
made, opinions expressed or reports included herein.

The Directors of the Company collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information given and confirm having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief that there are no other facts the omission of which would render any statement in the circular
misleading.

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker or other
professional advisor immediately.

CEYLON HOTELS CORPORATION PLC
PB 3283
No. 327, Union Place, Colombo 02.



UNITED HOTELS COMPANY
LIMITED

- EKHO SURF

- EKHO SAFARI

- EKHO LAKE HOUSE
- LAKE HOTEL




Annexure I

EKHO SURF

At EKHO Surf, you are assured of a tropical Sri Lankan  beach
experience. Located on a kilometer stretch of soft sand, renowned as
‘the longest stretch of beach’ on the south-west coast of Sri Lanka, edged
by the Indian Ocean. EKHO Surf brings together golden sunsets, soft
sand and a sprawling lawn with well-appointed rooms and the freshest of
seafood, encouraging a truly authentic tropical escape.
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Annexure |

EKHO SAFARI

A rejuvenating waterfront retreat - EKHO Safari occupies a prime
position in Tissamaharama. Scenically located by the ancient “Tissa
Wewa” providing undisturbed views of the lake. The Tissamaharama
property traces its roots back when it started operation in 1967, now
restored to a comfortable and beautifully laid lake view hotel.
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Annexure I

EKHO LAKE HOUSE

Built-in 1870 as a circuit bungalow for British Government Agents, the
Old Polonnaruwa Rest House and once the Queen of England’s holiday
destination in the 1960’s, has now been restored and now renamed
EKHO Lake House, Polonnaruwa. Overlooking the panoramic Sea of
Parakrama Samudra and offering magnificent views of the historic
centre of Polonnaruwa’s UNESCO World Heritage site, of Kingdoms
past.

Yl O




Annexure |

LAKE HOTEL

Spread over three acres of landscaped garden and a ten minute walk to
the beautiful EKHO Lake House, lies the second property that
formulates the Polonnaruwa Resort Collection, the Lake Hotel.
Itisset at the edge of the Sea ofParakrama, and is located
in the historical city of Polonnaruwa enabling you to spend a
peaceful holiday amidst a glorious history. The hotel consists of
well-equipped deluxe bedrooms spread across two floors while all
offer views of the lake and beyond.
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Annexure II

Group Structure - Pre Restructure

Ceylon Hotels
Corporation PLC

— 1611% —> ‘ ‘

Kandy Hotels United Hotels Ceylon Holiday CHC Foods Airline Services
Co. 1938 PLC Co. Ltd Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd

Suisse Hotel Ceylon Hotels Tissa Resort CHC Rest Houses
(Pvt) Ltd Maldives (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd

Suisse Hotel
Kandy (Pvt) Ltd



Annexure I1I

UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

T(» THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UNITED HOTFLS COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements ol United Hotels Company Limited (“the Company™) and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the income statement, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
incotne, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statenients, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company and the Group give a trite and fair view of
the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the ycar then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standavds (SLAnSs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Lithics issued by €A Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Lthics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The management is responsible for the other mformation. These finaneial statements does not include other
information.

Our opinion on the financial statements do not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

Respoansibilities of Management and Thosce Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemcnts
The management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true snd fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determings is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matcrial misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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W.LE. Farara FE& Ma 5 Jonoph FCA My, SMB. Jaysrakara FCA
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In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the (iroup or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for aversgeing the Company’s and Group's financial reporting
process.

Aunditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statcments as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLASs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
sheplicism throughout the audit. We also:

*  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss
of the Company and the Group’s internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncenainty cxists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability (o continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required Lo draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up o the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease (0 continue as a going CONCEr,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Dbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
aclivities within the Group 1o cxpress an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and the performance of the group audit. We remain solely
respansible Tor our apinion,

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identity during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting records
have been kepl by the Company.

!/\W/I/'_‘\

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombe, Sri Lanka
29% September 2022
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UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
ATATEMENT OF FROFIT OR 1.0585 AND OTHER COMPREHENSTVE INCOMEL

Ceroup Company

For the year ended 31 Marck 2032 20 M2 021

Maote Hs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Eevenue 7 39, 370,824 T10.421.254 241,247,062 136,568 240
Costof sales (58,564 464} (47,334,310 (40,842,603) (2741R,163)
Gross profil 250,806,360 163,066,744 200,404,459 1905 450,077
Other inuome 8 4,159,796 903 k21 4,159,796 a53 821
Distiibution expenses (21083422} (23261426 (16,561,936) (17,229,851
Adolnistrative expenses (298,043,709} (26372423 (219030351} (187789031
Orher operating exponses {9,327 836} Ga21L01%) (1. 327.836) {10,667, 71
Loss from operating activitics 73,488,901} (112,553,102) (39,955 BiE) {105,275 624}
Finance ineome a1 569,646,745 98,956,577 26,767,682 31,687,304
Finance costs 9.2 299,251,733 ([13.236.250)  (268,602,353) (8A705.4064)
et finunce incomef{eosts) ] 270,395,012 (143207081 {241,814,671) (55,110,740}
Sharc of Joss of equity accounted investees {net of ax) 1721 {4,997.915) (207%.258) - -
TrontfLoss) before income tax 10 191,908,196 (148, 962,0163) {281,770,530 {160,384 364}
Treame tax revarsal 1t 17,143,977 18,710,845 15,864,455 19,670,730
Profiki1ons) Tor the year 1"9]!}52'”3 (1240251,195) [265,906.084} {140,713,634)

The Wartes form an integral pert gf these Financiad Statements.
Fignriey e brockels indiveie deduedons.
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UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED

STATFMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTIER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME

Group Company
For the pear ended 31 March 2022 2021 2022 201
Mote Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs

Profit/{Luss) for the year 209,052,173 {130,251,195)  (265806,084)  (140.713,634)
Oiher comprehensive incomef{expenses)
Items that will never be classified to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 290,109,508 - 128,849, 109 -
Decferred ax impact on revaluation 8 (40,615,331) - {31,044,475) -
Actuarial ess on retirement benefit obligacion 27.2 {248,381) (73,535} (326,369) {517.863}
Deferred tax inpact on actuarial loss 28 34,774 94,302 45,692 72,502

249,280,570 (579,283} 156,563,957 (445,367)
Items that arc or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Sharg of OCT of equity aqcounled investees (net of tax} - 47,643,404 16,731,350 ~ A
Foreign currency translation (Note 17.2.1}

47,643,404 16,731,350 - -

Other comprehensive incomef{expense) for the year 296,023,974 16,152,067 196,563,957 (4453673
Total comprehensive income / (cxpensc) Tur the year 505.476,147 (114,099,128} (69,342,127 {141.159.001}
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 20%,052,173 (130,251,195 (265,906,084)  {140,713.634)
Mon-controlling inierest - - - -
Loss for the vear 205,052,173 (130,251,195) _ (265.906,084) _ (140,713,634}
Taotal comprehensive ineeme / (expense) attributable to
Equity holders of the company 503,976,147 (114,099, 128) (60.342,127) (141,139,001
MNon-controlling interest - - - -
‘T'ntal comprehensive incame / {expense) for the year 515,076,047 (114,009, 128) (64,342,127} (141,159,001
Basic Profitf{loss) per sharc 521 0.7 (.44} (0.89) (G471

The Notes form an tetegral part of these Fimoncial Staterments,
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION

Annexure I1I

Az ar 31 March

MNon-turrent d5ses

Prapenty, plant and cquipment
Intangible assels

Right of usc assels

Investments properly

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in equity accounted investees
{ther Investments

Tatal non-current assets

Current assels

Inventories

Trade and other neceivables

Income Lix receivables

Amounts due from related companies
Assets held for sale

Cagh and cash equivalents

Tuotal current assets

Total assets

Equity

Stated capital
Resernves
Arvcumulated losses
Total equity

MNon-current liabilities

Intzrest bearing and harrawings
Emplovee benafits

Lease labilities

Dreferred tax ligbilities
Guvermment grancs

Total non-eorrent labilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Lease Babilities

[nterest bearing and borrgwings
Amounts due to related companies
[necne tax payable
Government granis

Bunk overdralt

Tutal current liabilitics

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

1%
20
i
21
12
23

4
15

6.1
27
15.2
8
3

0
15.2
6.2

3

32

30
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Group Company
2022 2021 022 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Bs.
[,768,618,107 1,568,587,270 1,422,860,532 1,255,640,435
SY3A1T 2,006,503 14,235 659,188
112,131,229 116,525,728 109,521,388 113,593,315
192,237,968 200,7R7, 968 192,237,968 200,787,968
- - 1,112,092 050 1,112,002,050
- 793,102,982 - -
613,750 463,750 603,750 463,750
2,074,184,471  2,684,274200 2837320923 287619706
26,580,896 28212249 19,337,581 20,368,033
58,180,782 19,196,383 45,608,360 14,832 018
2,904,403 2,688,781 215,622 -
38,658,173 33,498 6358 582,175,055 566,204,580
837,748,471 = = -
1.542,250,470 573,238,672 36,398,708 8,597,621
2,506,313,195 1056834, 943 684,135,326 611,852,252
4,580,507.666 3.741.104,144 3,521.565,249 1208491958
1,937,945,524 1,937.945,824 1,937,945,824 1,937.543, 424
016,084,799 663,421,605 616,630,379 434 909,634
(97,107,743} {350,420,696) (521.365,264) (285,302.392)
2,756,032.580 2,230,946,733 2,043,210,939 2,112,553 066
845,989,542 £60,10(,558 740,742,477 Tl2,661.414
4,804,708 4,264,837 3015299 3510291
123,968,251 136,180,309 119,023,708 130,825,350
83,417,433 61,477,237 56,847,831 41,638,345
1,220,276 2,849,704 618,727 1,424,804
1.059,400,2 10 1,064.874.645 921,148,042 SO0, (60 614
102,713,564 87,236,228 83,546,153 a7.907 598
45,151,250 25,060,180 44,311,831 23.801,185
431,082,251 150,142,280 364,150,081 150,142,280
27,573,52% 255395974 88,500 -
- 75,617 - 15407
3,258,067 mLne 1,651,728 35 608
154,395,904 137,122,168 62,757 HR75 53,856,000
T6d, 184,570 425,287,760 557,206,168 295,878,258
1,823,584, 786 1,480,162,411 1,478.154.310 1,155,914.892
4,580,507,666 _ 3,741.105.144 3,521,565.249 3,298,491 958

The Notes form an integrol part of these Finaneiol Statements.

Fligures in brackets indicate deductions.

Tt is certify that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the reguirements of the Companies set No. 07 of 2007,

-

Finance controlier

The Board of Directurs are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Approved and signed tor and on behalt of the Board of dircctors.

Director i\
30 August 2022, Colo mho“\
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UNITED IOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Annexure I1I

Company

Balance as at 01 Aprit 2020

Totiid comprehensive expenses
Lass for the year

Ofhrer compreiensive income

Revaluation of property, plant and equiprment
Acluarial gain from defined benefit ebligations
Tax on other comprebensive incone

Tatal comprehensive inepme for the year

Transters from reservas
Ralance as at 31 March 2021
Balance as at 01 Aprii 2021

Total comprehensive expenses
T.0os5 for the vear

ilrer compreftensive income

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Ltefarred tax tmpact on revaluation

Actuarial loss from defined benzfit obligations
Tax on acturial loss

Tnal comprehensive income for the vear

Transfers from reserves

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Stated capital
Rs.

1,937,945.824

Revaluation
FCREFVE

Rs,

45,033,523

Accumulated
losses
Rs.

{174,267.280)

{140,713,634)

Total equity
Hs.

2,253, 712,067

(140,713,634)

. " (517,869 {517,865}
. . 72,502 71,502
3 : (41,1565001) (141,150,001
- (30,123 859) 30,123,889 -
1.937.945,824 459,909,634 (2855023921 _ 2.112.553,066_
1,937,945,824 459,909,634 (285302,392)  1,112,553.066
- 2 (265,906,084} {265506,084)
3 228,889,108 i 228,839,100
= (32,044,475) . (32,044,475)
3 - (326,369) (326,369)
- = 45,692 48,692
P 196,344,634 {266,156,761) (69.342,127)
= (30,123,889) 30,123,889 e
1.037,945,824 626,630,379 1521.365.264) __ 2.043.210.939

Tie Notey annexed form an integral povt of these Finoaciol Statements.

Fligauras in brackets Indicate deductions.
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Annexure IIT

UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2011
Note Rs, Ks. Rs. Rs.
Cagh fows from operaling activities i
Loss before income tax 191,908,196 (148,962,063  {181,770,539)  (160,584,354)
Adjustment for;
Deprecialion on properly, plant and cquipment 13 93,040,767 91,609,026 £723,107 47,086,334
Amatisation of intangble Assests 14,1 1,413,086 1,854,366 644,953 1,661 823
Amortizaticn of imventories 14 777336 T17.836 1.356,284 TITELG
Frovisign for inventories 576448 - 578,448 -
Deprecigtion of right of use assel 15,1 4,794,499 4,389,283 4474927 4069711
Write-off WHT and ESC receivables e 7444633 - 6,778,391
Fair Yalue loss of Investment Property 18 8,550,000 - 8,550,000 -
Provision for employes beoefit obligation 27 1,006,608 1,113,347 95,757 £95 532
Exchiange loss on interest bearing borcowmps i 174,652,751 4,885,000 174,652,751 9,285 000
Share of result of equity accounted Joint ventures 17.2.1 4997915 2,073,258 - -
Fair valug loss on other investment 18 {140,000) {87,500} (1440, 000) (87,500%
Provisiongfreversal) for trade and other receivables ] 103,044 (11,600,915} 203,044 351495
Trovision for amounts due Tom related companies 1 {330.595) 1,047,052 (4,450,619} -
Interest income (39,993,235) (51,319,050} (26,757,682} {327 TR0)
Inlerest expenses 124,531,617 104,730,573 03,949,601 30,242 357
Operating prefit before working capitsl changes 544,990,937 12,961,046 30,288,032 11,049.027
Changes in;
Inventeries 275,009 4,048,150 {704,280) 2,066,502
Trade and other receivables (4,973,264} 56,530,183 (32,145,667) 39 370,336
Amounts due rom relaied companics 3,818,351 (2,438,546} 13,163,562 21,844,926
Trade & other payables 14,807,482 [9,781,043) 14,968,701 (10,709,764
Amounts due to related cempaniss 2,033,555 {118 606,249 THE 500 (109,876,063)
Cash generated from/{uscd in) operating activities 524,961,130 (63,286 459) 35,155 845 (45,654,661}
Interest paid (3,021.595) (77,988,533 (351,516) (62,770,876}
Rcliring gratuity ameunt paid T {717,118 {1,364 924) {717,118} (1,268,013}
Net tash flow generated from/{used in} operating activities 521,123,417 {142 639 9416) 34,290,214 (1909,693,5504
Cash Mows from investing activilies
Tnterest receved 51,334,362 31319050 2,704,264 227,780
Acquisition of property. plant and equipment 13 (1,562,096 (1,814,819 (1.562,096) (611,459)
Met cash generated from{used in) investing activities 49,772,266 49,504 231 1,142,165 (383,679)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan obtaned during the year 26 {10,147,362} 56,130,581 (86,349,296) 70,104,662
Lease repaid during the vear 15.2 (9,110,241} - {1.643,174) -

Net cash generated from Bnancing activities (19,257,623} 96,130,581 (15,993,170} 70,104,662
Net increase / (decreasc) in cash & cash cquivalenis 551,738,060 2594 £96 19,439,212 (39,972,567
Cash & cash equivalents al the bepinming ol the year 836,116,504 833,121,608 (45,298,379 (5,325,812
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,387,854,564 §36,116,504 (25.859,167) (45,298,379

Analysis of cush & cash equivilents

Cash at banks and in hand 43,045,490 &R 431,441 36,894,708 8387621
Fixed deposis 1,4%9,204,561 904,807,231 - -
Bank wverdrafl (154,395.906) (137,172,168} (62,757,875 {53,896,000)
{’ash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,387.854,564 Bi6, 116,504 (25,.%50,167) [45,298.379)

The Nates annexed form an ntegre! part of these Financiaf Statements.
Figures in brackels indicate deduclions.
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Annexure I1I

UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.I.  Reporting Entity
L.1.1. Domicile and Legal Form

United Hotels Company Limited (“the Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated in Sri Lanka.
The registered effice of the Company is situated at No. 327, Union Place, Colomba 02

1.2.  Companies in the Group and Parent Company

The Company, in the consolidated financial statements, refers to United Hotels Company Limited and
Group relers to the Company and all its subsidiaries namely Tissa Resort (Private) Limited, Ceylon Hotels
Maldives {Private) Limited {together referred to as the “Group™), whose financial statements have been
consolidated.

The (lalle Face Hotel Company Limited is the parent company of United Hotels Company Litnited.
1.3, Principal activity and Nature of the Operations

The principal activity of the Company and subsidiary Companies is engaging in the husiness of hatel
services and there has been no change in the nature of such activities during the year.

1.4.  Responsibilities for financial statements

The board of directors is responsible for preparation and presentation of the financial statements of the
Company as per the provision of Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. The
directors’ responsibility over financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in detail in
the statement of directors’ responsibility.

1.5, Approval of financial statements by Dircctors

The consolidated financial statements of the (roup for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorized for
issue in accordance with resolution of the Board of Directors on 30 August 2022

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2l Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of United Hotels Company Limited, comprise the statcent of
financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in
equity and notes to the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (hereinafier referred to as SLEFRS) issued by the [nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka, Sri Lanka Accounting & Auditing Standards act no 15 of 1995 & the
requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

2.3, Basis of Measuremcent

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis and applied consistently with ne adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the
financial statements, except for the following material items in the statemnent of financial position;

¢ lcasehold buildings - Revalued amounts

e Investment property - Fair value

e Defined benefit obligation - Actuanially valued and recognized at present value of the detined
benefit obligation.
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Annexure IIT

UNITED HOTELS COMFPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.3,

2.4,

2.5,

26

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the Functivnal Currency), which is the Sri Lankan Rupee.

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR) which is the functional
currency of the Group enlities other than for the company listed helow where the functional currency is
¢ither based on the country of incorporation of the company or elements that could influence in determining
its [uncuonal cureency.

Company Country of Incorporation | Funetional Currency
Handhuwaru Ocean Holidays (Private) Limited Maldives UsD

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
requires management to tnake judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historics] experience and various other factors that are belicved fo be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgment about carrying values
of assets and liahilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that
pericd, or the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both eurrent and future periods.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effect
om the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in following notes,

Maote 13 - Revaluation of buildings

Note 14 — Measurement of intangible assets

Note 15.2 - Lease liabilities

Mote 16 - Fair valuation and classification of investment property
Maote 17 - Investment in subsidiaries

Note 17.2 - Investment in equity accounted investees

Note 27 - Measurement of retirement benefit obligations

Note 28 - Measurement of deferred tax liabililies

Note 34 - contingent Habilities

Measurement of Fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non- Nnancial assets and liabilities.

Gronp regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, If third party
Iintormation is used to measure fair values, Group assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of SLFRS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as tar as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a lair value hierarchy based on the inputs uscd
in the valuation techniques as follows.

= Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

#  lLevel 2 Inpuls olher than guoled prices inclided in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability thal are not based on observable market data. (UInobservable
inputs),




Annexure I1I

UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[f the inputs uscd to measure the fair value of an asset or a lability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the samc level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The (iroup recognizes transfers between lovels of the fair value higrarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the changs has occurred.

2.6,  Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separatcly in the Financial Statements. llems of dissimilar
nature or lunelion are prosented separately unless they are immaterial.

Notes (o the Financial Statements arc presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statements of the Group and the Company. Understandability of the
Financial Statcments is not compromised by obscuring material intormation with immaterial information
or by agpregating malerial ilems that have different natures or functions.

2.7 Mlselling

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
positien, only when there is a lepally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention (o settle on a net basis or 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilitics sitmultanecusly. Income and
expenses are not offsel in the income statement, unless required or permitted by Sri Lanka Accounting
Slandards and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements,

3.1.  Changes in Significant Accounting Policies

1.1.1. Amendments to Definition nf a Business - SLFRS 3

‘I'here were no changes in Accounting Policies for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Further a number of other new standards were etfective from 1 April 2021 but they do not have a material
effect on the Group's Financial Statements.

The Group has consistently applicd the Accounting Policies to all periods presented in these Financial
Slatements.,

The details of accounting policies are set out in note 3.2 to these financial statements. The Group did not
acquire any subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2022, as a result the impact of the application of
this amended standard was limited to the changes in the significant accounting policies disclosed.

L2 Basis of Consalidation

The Group’s financial statements comprise of the lnancial statements of the company its subsidiarics
prepared in terms of Sti Lanka Accounting standard (SLFRS -10) - Consolidated Financial Statements and
share of profit and loss and net asscts of cquity accounted investees prepared in terms of Sri Lanka
Accounting standard (LKAS 28) - Investments in Associales and Joint Ventures.

a) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed as at the acquisition date, which
is the daie on which the control is transferred to the Groop.
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UNITED TTOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28

b}

¢)

d)

Control is the power to govern Financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, Group takes in to consideration potential voting rights that
currently are exercisable.

The (iroup measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

s  The tair value of the consideration transferred: plus

¢ The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire: plus

¢ If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest
in the acquire: less

e The net recognized amount {generally fair value) ol the identiliable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain s recognized immediately in profit or loss, The
consideration  transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of preexisting
relationships. Such amounts generally are recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs other than those associated with the issue of debt ar cquity securities. that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. Any contingent
consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. I the contingent consideration
is classificd as cquity, then it is not re measured and settlement is accounted for within cquity.
Otherwise subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposcd
to, or has rights to, variable retumns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability (o affect
those returns through its power over the entity, The financial statements of substdiaries are included in
the consulidated financial statements from the dale that control comniences until the date that control
ceases.

Mon-controlling interests

The proportion of the profiis or losses after taxation applicable to outside sharcholders of subsidiary
companies is included under the heading “Non — controlling interest “in the Consalidated Income
Statement. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary is allocated to the non-
controlling interest even if doing so causces the noneontrolling interests to have a deficit balance.

The interest of the minority shareholders in the net assets employed of these companies are reflected
under the heading “Non — controlling interest™ in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Acquisitions of non-controliing interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their
capacily as owners and therefore no goodwill Is recopnised as a result of such transactions.
Adjustments to non-controlling interest arising from transactions thal do not involve the loss of control
are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.

Luoss of contral

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary.

Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss. If the Group retains
any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that
control is lost.

Subsequently it is accounted for as equity aceounted investee or as financial asset measured as FVOC]
depending on the level of influence is retained.
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UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e) Intercsts in eguity-accounted investees (investments in joint ventures)

The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in joint ventures.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has juinl control, whereby the Group has rights
to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights Lo its assets and obligations for its liabilities,

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights
1o the net assets of (the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and ebligations for its liahilities.
Interests in associates and joint venture arc accounted for using the equity wethod. 'Ihey are initially
recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated
financial statements include the CGroup’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity-accounted
investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

f) Transactions Eliminated on Consvlidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized gains and losses or income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are climinated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated apainst the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
samne way as unrealised gains, but enly to the extent that there is no evidence of impairtnent,

¢) Financial statements joint venture conpanies included in conselidated financial statements

Audited financial statements are used for consclidation. All Financial statements included in the
consolidation have financial years ending 31 March except for Handhuvaru Ocean Holidays (Private)
Limited and Bandhuvaru Ocean (Privaic) Limited which have the financial year ending 31 December,

h) Significant transactions and evenls during the period between date of financial statements of
subsidiarics and date of financial statements of the Group

No adjustments to the results of subsidiary companies have been made as they were not significant.
3.3, Foreign currency
3.3.1. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in {orcign curreneics are translated to the respective funcrional cumencies of Group chtities
at exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated n foreign
currency at the reporting date are retranslated (o the [unctional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into
the finctional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in a forelgn currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Non-monctary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to reporting cumrency
using the exchianpe rate that was prevailing on the date the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency dilferences arising on retranslation generally are recopnized in income statement.
However, the following items are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

e Differences arising on the retranslation of fair value through other comprehensive income equity
investments which was recognised in other comprehensive income. Foreign currency gains and losscs

are reported on a net hasis in the income statement.

o Gains and losses arising from translating the financial statements of forelgn operations
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UNITED HOTELS COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.

30

3.3.2, Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into Rupees at the exchanpe rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses
of foreign operations are transtated into Rupees at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions,
Toreign currency differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve, except lo
the extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI (Non-Coutrolling Interest},

When a foreign operation is disposed of it its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is
reclassificd to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevam proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to NCL

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant influence
or juint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified 1o protit or loss,

Financial Instruments
3.4.1. Recognilion and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued arc initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company and the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

3.4.2. Classification amd subsequenl measurement

On initial recognition, 2 financial asset is classified as measored at: amortised cost; Financial assets at fair
walue through other comprehensive income {(FVOCI) - debt investment; Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss {FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company and the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
arc reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured al amorlised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FY'TPL.:

- it is held within a business model whose ebjective Is 1o hold asscts to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount owstanding.

- a debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meels both of the following conditions and 15 not
designated as at [VTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling Nnancial asscts; and

- itscontractual tenms give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outsianding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company and the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair valus in OCI This election s made
on an mvestrnent-by-investment hasis.
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTEL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recegnition, the Company and the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the reguirements to be measured at
amartised cost or at FVOCT ay at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment:

‘The Company and the Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business medel in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio leve] because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice, These
include whether management's strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular imcrest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets (o the duration of any related
liahilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

o how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported 1o the Company and the Group's
management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the busincss model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

o how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the cotttractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third partics in transactions that do not qualify for de-recognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company and the Group's continuing recognition of
the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest:

Far the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a partienlar period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

I assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and interest, the Company
and the Group considers the centractual terms of the instrument. This includes asscssing whether the
financial assel contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company and the Group
considers:

«  contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

«  terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

s prepayment and extension features; and

e terms that limit the Company and the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features),

A prepayment leature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amounl outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early lermination of the
contract.
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Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium 1o its contractual par amound, a (eature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation
for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the Fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subseq r t and gains and losses:

Financial asseis at FVTPL

‘These assets are subsequently measured at fair vatue. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets al amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchangs gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss,

Debi invest ts at FVOC]

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the eflective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecopnition, gaing and losses accomulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss,

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearty represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or lass.

Financial Liabilities - Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financia! liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost ot FVTPL. A financial liability is classificd
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recopnilion.

Finansial liabilities at FVTPL are measurad at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
[ntercst expense and foreign exchanpe gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables and amaunts due to related companices.

3.4.3. De-recognition

Financial assets

The Company and the {iroup de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
trom the financial asset expire, or it transters the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company and the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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The Company and the Group enters inte transactions whereby it transfirs assers recognized in its statement
of financial pusition, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. Tn these cases, the transfemed assels are nol de-recognised.

Financial liabilities

‘The Company and the Group de-recognises a financial lability when its contractual obligations arc
discharged or cancelled, or expire, The Company and the Group also de-recognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liahility are substantially dilferent, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modificd terms is recognised at fair value.

On de-recognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid {including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit
or loss.

3.4.4. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilitics arc offsct and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position whet, and only when, the Company and the Group cwrrently has a legally enforceable right to set
off'the amounts and it inlends either to settle them on a net basts or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultanecusly.

3.4.5. Impairment
Non-derivative financial asscts

‘The Company and the Group measure loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs, Loss
allowances for trade receivahles are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a {inanciat asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimaling ECLs, the Company and the Group considers reasonable and suppartable
information that is relevant and available without undue eost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company and the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking intormation. The Company and the Group
ussummes that the credit risk on a fnancial asset has inereased significantly it'it is more than 180 days past
duc,

The Company and the Group considers a Minancial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations ta the Company and the Group in full, without
recourse by the Company and the Group to acticons such as realising security (if any is heid); or
- the financial asset iz more than 180 days past dus

Lifetime [CLs are the BCLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of'a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs arc the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
moiths after the reporting date (or a shorter periad if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company and the Group s exposed (o credit risk.

Measurement of ECILs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present valuc

of all cash shertfalls (i.c. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company and the Group expects to receive).

ECi .5 are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
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Credit-impaired lnancial assets

At each reporting date, the Company and the Group assesses whether financial asscts carried at amonised
cost und debt securities at FVOCT are credit-impaired. A financial asset js 'credit-impaired” when one or
more gvents that have a detrimental inipact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
ocenrred,

Evidence that a linancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e Significant financial dilficulty ol the bormewer or issuer;

= A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;

o The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company and the Group on terms that the Company and
the Group would not consider otherwise;

e ltis probable that the borrower wili enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e The disappearance of an active market 1or a security bocause of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Wrile-ofl

The gross carrying amount of a finaneial asset is written off when the Company and the Group has no
reasunable expeactations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thercof. For individual
customers, the Company and the Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the
financial asset is 365 days past due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. For
corporate customers, the Company and the Group individually makes an asscssment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-oll based on whether there is a reasonable cxpectation of recovery. The
Company and the Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written oft, However, financiat
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company and the Group's procedures to recovery of amounts due.

Inpairment Policy: Non-financial aszets

The carrying amount of the Company and the Group's non-financial assets ather than deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determing whether there is any indication of impairment. [l any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, then the asset's recoverable
amount (s estinated. Goodwill is tested annoally for impainment.

For impairment esting, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of ather assets or CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its
recoverable amount. Geodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGL (s the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
spacific to the asset or CGU.

An impaimment loss is trecognized il the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exeecds its estimated
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in Profit or Loss. Impainment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGLl {group of CGUs), aud
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU {group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis,
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3.5,

3.6.

An impairment loss in respect of goadwill is not reversed, For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the assel's carrying amount dees not cxeced the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Stated Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Incremental Costs attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating (o transaction cost of an equity transaction is
accounted for in accordance with LKAS 12

Property, Plant & Equipment
3.0.1. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant & equipment arc tangible items that are held for servicing, or for administrative purposcs
and are expected o be used during more than one period.

a) Recognition

Property, plant & cquipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

b) Measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment other than leasehold buildings, are stated al costs less
accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses,

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
construcled assets includes the cost of maierials and direct lahour, any other cost directly attributable
to bringing the assel to a working condition for its intended vse, and the cost of dismanlling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they arc located.

Purchascd software that is integrated to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part
ol that cquipment.

Expenditure on repairs or maintenance of property, plant and equipment made to restore or maintain
future economic benefits expected from the assels has been recognized as an expense when incurred.

¢) Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of preperty, plant and equipment that is
accounted for separately, including major inspection and overhaul expenditure, {s capitalized. The cost
of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment {s recognized in the carrying amoont of
the item, if 1t is probable that the future economic benefits embedied within the part will flow to the
Group and its cosl can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
The cost of the day-te-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred,

d) De-recognition

An item of property. plant & equiptient Is derecognized upon disposal or when ne future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognizing of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset), is recognized
in “other expenses”™ in profit/loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

When replaccment cosls are reeognized in the carrving amount of an item of property, plant &
cquipment, the retaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized as required by LKAS
16 Properly, Planl & Equipment.
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&) Revaluation

If an asset's carrving amount is increased a8 a result of a revaluation, the increase shall be credited
directly to equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognized
in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognized in profit or loss,

If an assel's carrying amount is decreased as a cesult of & revaluation, the decrease shall be recognized
in profit or loss. [lowever, the decrease shall be debited directly to equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus 1o the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of
that asset.

‘The Group transfer portion of revaluation reserve to retained earnings as the assets are used by the
enttity, sinee the future economic benefits embodied in the assets are consumed primeipally through its
use rather than on retircinent or disposal.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated usctul lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipmeit. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as
follows.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Buildings on leasehold land - 37-44 years
Planl & machinery - 10 yoars
Fumiture & office equipment - 10 years
Swimming pool - 08 years
Computer equipment - 05 years
Other equipmet - 03 vears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
il approprials.

If an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increasce shall be credited
directly to equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, the increasc shall be recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assel previously
recognised in profit or loss.

If an asset’s carrving amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised
in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be debiled directly o equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respeet of
that asset.

The Group transfer portion of revaluation reserve to retained earnings as the assets are used by the
entity, since ihe fulure economic benefils embadied in the assets arc conswmed principally through its
use rather than en retirement or disposal.

37 Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets. For the
measurement of goodwill at inilial recognition, see Note 3.2(a}. Subsequently Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impainnent losses.

3.7.1. Other intangible assets

Other Intangible assets that are acquired by Lhe Group and have finitc usclul lives arc measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
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3.8

3.9,

Lease hold rights are shown at historical cost. Lease hold rights have a finite useful life and are carried at
cosl less accumulated amortivation. Amorlization is calculated using the straight- linc method to allocale
the cost of leasehold right over the estimated uselul life.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benelits cmbodicd in the
specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expendilure on imlernally generated
goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis in profit or loss over their estimated uscful lives,
from the date that they are available for use other than goodwill. The estimated useful life of sofiware is
five years. Amortization method, useful lives and residual values arc reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted 1f appropriate.

Investment property

Investment property principally comprise freehold land and building held either 1o earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of poods or services or tor administrative purposes. Investment property is measured al cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with atty change therein recognized in profit or loss.

Cost includes expenditure hat is directly attdbutable o the acquisition of the investment property. The
cost of self-constructed investments property includes the cost of malerials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bring the investment property to a working condition for their intended use and
capitalized barrowing costs.

Any pain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
procecds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in profit or loss. When an
investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, any related
amount inctuded in the revalvation reserve is transforred to retained earnings.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair
value at the date of reclassitication becomes its cost for subsequent accounting,

Investment property is carried at fair value determined annually by an independent valuer. A gain or loss
arising from a change in the fair value of investment property is recognized in profit or loss for the period
in which it arives.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contracl is, or contains, a lease. A contract Is,
ot cantains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identificd assct for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an
identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in SLFRS 16,

3.9.1. Asa Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company and the
(iroup allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component an the basis of its relative stand-
alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Company and the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lsase component.

The {2ompany and the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at Lhe kease commencement
date, The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
lighility adjusted for any lease payments made at or hefore the commencement date, plus any initia! direct
costs incwrred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying aszet or ihe site on which it is Incated, less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subscquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company and 1he Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company and the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assel is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initinlly measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company and the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The Company and the Group detenmnines its incremental borrowing rate by oblaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type
of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease lability comprise the following:

s fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payvments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, mitially measvred using (he index or rale as
al the commencement date;

» amounts cxpeeted to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

s the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company and the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company and the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and penaltics early termination of a lease unless the Company
and the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate carly.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
therc is a change in fulure lesse payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company and the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, il the Company and the Group changes its assessiment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
exlension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrving amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

‘The Company and the Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in right of use asset and lsase liabilities in *loans and borrowings” in the statement of financial
pasLLIon.

3.92. Short tcrm lcases and leases of low-value assels

The Company and the Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases
of low-value asscts and short-term leases. The Company and the Ciroup recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a strajghi-iine basis over the lease term.

3.9.3. Lease modifications

The Company and the Group shall aceount for a lcase modification us « separate lease if both:

a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assats; and

b} the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
ol the particular contract.
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For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the cffective date of the lease
modification the Company and the Group shall:

a) allocate the consideration in the modified contract

by determine the lcase term of the modified lease

c) remeasure the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
The revised discount rale is determined as the mterest rate implicit in the lease for the remainder of the
lease term, il that rate van be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
effective date of the modification, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Company and the Group shall
account for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

a) decreasing the canying amount of the right-of-use asset 1o refleet the partial or full termination of the
lease for lease medifications that decrease the scope of the leasc. The lessee shall recognize in profit
or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

b) making a corresponding adjustment 1o the right-of-nse asset for ali other lease modilications

3.10. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Net realizable value is the estimated
sclling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incutred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Accordingly, the costs of inventories arc
accounted as follows:

Food and Beverage - At weighted average cost
Packeted Snacks - At actual eost on FIF() basis
Other Consumables - At acrual cost on FIFO basis

Cutlery, Crockery, Linen & Glassware - At weighted average cost
3,11,  Fmployee Benefits
3.11.1. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-conployment plan under which an entity pays fixed cantribution into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further amount. Obligations for
cantributiens te defined contribution plans are recognized as expense in the profit and loss in the period
during which related services are rendered by employees.

Employees' Provident Fund

The Group and Employees' contribute 12% & 8% respectively on the salary of each employec respectively
to the Employee Provident Fund.

Employees Trust Fund

The Group contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees® I'rust Fund contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in (e inconme statement as incurred.

3.11.2.Defined benefit plans - Retiring Gratuity

A delfined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

[n aceordance with revised LKAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” which became effective from the financial
year commencing after 01 July 2007, the Group has adopted the actuarial valuation metiiod and the
valuation methad used by the actuary is “Projected Unit Credit Method™. The assumptions based on which
the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note 27 to the finaneial stalcments.
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However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the Liability to an employee arises only on
completion of 5 years of continues service.

When the benefit of a plan is charged or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that related
{0 pasi scrvice or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Any actuarial gains or losses arising are recognized immediately in the statement of other comprehensive
ncome.

The liahility was nol externally funded.
3.11.3. Sheri-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company
and the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the emploves, and the obligation can be cstimated reliably.

3.11.4. Termination henefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company and the Group is demonstrably
committed, wilhout a realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate
employment before the normal retiternent date, or to provide rermination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benctits for volumtary redundancies are recognized
as an expense if the Cempany and the Group has made an oifer of voluntary redundancy, it 1s probable ihat
the offer will be accepted, and the numbcr of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are pavable
more than 12 months afler the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value,

Liahilities and Provisions
3.12.1. Liabilities

Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the balance sheet are those, which fall due for payment on
demand or within on¢ vear from the balance sheet date.

Non-current liabilities are those balances that fall duc for payment after one vear from the balance sheet
date.

3.12.2. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

3.12.3. Caontingent liabilities and contingeni assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-pecurrence of ofe or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company and the Grroup or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
autflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in cxtremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company and the Group does not recognize a contingent
liahility but discloses its existence in the finaneal statements.
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A contingent asset is a possible assct that arises trom past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
and the CGiroup. The Company and the Group does not recognize contingent assets but discloses its existence
where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but tiot virtvally certain, In the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Greup under business combinations, contingent liabilities assumed are measured initially at their
fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minarity interest.

313, Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilitics, arc classified as held-for sale if it
is highly probable that they will be rccovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining asscts and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allucated 1o inventories, financial
assets, deferred lax assets, employee benetit assets, investment property or biclogical asscts, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s ather accaunting policies. Tmpainment losses on
initia! classification as held-for-sale or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on
re-measutements are recogrized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible asscis and property, plant, and equipment are no longer
amartized or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

4. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
4.1. Revenue
4,1.1, Revenue from Contract with customcrs

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, The Group
recognizes revenue when it transfers control over the goods or services to a customer.

a} Revenue recogoition

Group recognizes, in the contract inlerception, whether it has fuifill its performance obligation over
time or at a point in time. In an eccasion where the performance obligation full fills overtime then the
Company and the Group recognize the revenue overlime based on the progress towards satisfaction of
that performance obligation.

b) Disaggregation of recognition

The disaggregated revenue is presented with reportable segments based on the revenue tecognition
timing of revenue recognition and geographical region in the operating segment Information section
which comes under Revenue note in the financial statcment.

¢y Contact Balances

Contract liabilities arc considered to be the hotel’s obligation to transfer goods and services to a
customer tor which the Group has received consideration {rom the customer, Short-term advances
includes in the contact liabilities which is received to render certuin services. Contract liabilities of the
group have been disclosed under Revenue note in the financial statement.

d) Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, The Group
recognizes revenue when it transiers conirol over a gond or services to a customer.
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4.3,
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The Group considers services in the each contract as one performance obligation for packages offered
to customers. Revenue in relation to package services are usually recognizes during the period of stay
of the customer. The (ransaction price is determined in the context of the contracts, Further, the Group
recognize individual identified services offered to customers as scparate performance obligation and
the revenue is recognized at the point of satisfying the performance obligations,

Following nature of revenues from contract with customers are involved in the Group operations;

e Apartment revenuc

The main obligation in the customer contract is to provide rooms for goests® accommodation. This is
represented in the Room Revenue reparted in the finatcial statements. Revenne under this segnient is
recognised on the rooms occupicd on & daily basis over the period of the stay. Invoice is raised to
customer on completion of the duration of the stay.

+ Food and beverages revenue

- FProvision of BB/HB/FB meal lor guests occupying the hotels which is part and partial of the
contract entered into. Revenue is recognized at the (ime ol sale and invoice to the customers on the
completion of the duration of the stay.

- Provision of extra tood and beverages - Revenue is recognised at the time of sale and invoice to
the customers at the time of consumption.

e Other holel related revenue (Spa income, Laundry income ete.)

These services are provided to customers as they are implied as business practices  in the industry and
create a valid expectation of the customer. Revenue is recognised at the time of provision of service
and invoice 1$ raised al the ime of service is consumed.

4.1.2.  Other Income
Following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of other income.

a) Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive is established.
b)  Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Revenue Expenditure

All expenditure incureed in running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment in
a state of efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the prefit for the year. For the purpose off
presentation of [ncome Statement, the Directors are of the opinion that function of expenss method present
fairly the elements of the enterprise’s performance, hence such presentation method is adopted.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, expanding or improving asscts of 8 permanent nature
by means of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the carming capacity of the
business has been treated as capital expenditure.

Repairs and renewals are charged to revenue in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The profit incurred by the Group before taxation as shown in the Comprehensive Income Statement is alter
making provision for all known liabilities and for the depreciation of property, plant & equipment.

Grants and Subsidies

Government grants are recognized initlally as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the
grant and are then recogtiized in profil or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset, Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognized in profit or loss as other
income on 4 systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognized.
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4.4.  Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in either providing products or
services (Business Segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(Cteographical Segment), which is subject to risks & rewards that arc different from those of the segment.
However, there are no distinguishable components to be tdentified as segment for the Company or Group.

4.3, Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs are interest and pther costs that an entity incurs in comnection with the borrowing of funds,
Borowing costs may include:

(a) Interest expense calculated using the eftective interest method as described in SLFRS 09 Financial
Tnstruments: Recognition and Measurement;

(k) Tinance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with SLFRS 16 Leases: and

(c) Fxchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded
a5 an adjustment to interest costs,

Giroup capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly atiributable o the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that assel. The Group then recognizes other horrowing
costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs them.

4.6, Finance income & Finance cost

Finance income comprises inlerest imcome on Tunds invested. Interest income is recognized as 1t accrues
in profit or loss, using the effective interest method and impairment gains recognized on financial assets
{other than trade recervables if any).

Finance cost camprises interest expenses on borrowings, impairment losscs recognized on financial assets
{other than trade receivables if any).

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of a
qualifying asset are recognized in profit or Joss using the effective intercst rate method.

47, Income Tax Expenses

An income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. An income tax expense is recognized directly
in income statements except to the extent that if relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it 1s recogiized in equity.

a) Current tax

Income ax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected lax payable on the
taxable income for the vear, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The Group’s liubility to taxation has
been computed in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017, and subsequent
amendments thereto. The Company and its subsidiaries qualify for a concessionary tax rates.

by Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for the tax effect of
temporary differences between the carrying amounis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the tax base of assels and Labilitics, which is the amount attributed to those assets and
liabilities for tax purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realization or setthement of the carmying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rales enacted by the
reporling date,
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4.9.

Deferred tax assets including those related (o (emporary tax ctfects of income tax losses and credits
available to be carried forward, are recognized only 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probablc that the related tax henefit
will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o be applied to the
year in which deferred tax asset is realized or liahility is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred raxcs relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

¢) Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relics
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about fulure evenls. New
information may become available (hat causcs the Cotnpany and the Group te change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax labilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax
expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Value Added Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT excepl where the VAT tncurred
on a purchase of assets or service is not recoverable from the taxation authorities in which case the VAT
is recognised as a part of the cost of the asset or part of the expense items as applicable and receivable and
payable that are stated with the amount of VAT included. The amount of VAT recoverable or payable in
respect of taxation authorities is included as a part of receivable and payable in the Balance Sheet,

Basic Earnings Per Share

The consalidated financial statements present basic eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
sharcholders.

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group
by the welghted average number of ordmary shares outstanding during the period.

Comparalive Information

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative, and descriptive information is disclosed in
respeet of the previous period in the Financial $tatements to enhance the understanding of the current
period’s Financial Statements and to enhance the inter period comparability. The prescentation and
classification of the Financial Statements of the previons year are amended, where relevant for better
presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.

5. CASHFLOW STATEMENT

44

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprisc cash balances, demand deposits and short-term highly liguid
investments, with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and arc used by the Group in the management of its short
term commilments.

For the purpose of cash flow siatemnent, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in
banks net of outstanding bank overdrafls, Tnvestments with short maturities Le. three months or less from
the date of acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents.
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The Cash Flows Statements has been prepared using the “indirect method™.

Interest paid are classilied as operating cash Dows, interest and dividend received are classified as investing
cash flows while dividends paid are classified as financing cash flows for the purpose of presenting of cash
flow statement.

6. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT THE REFORTING
DATE

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning afier 1 April 2022 and carlicr
application is permitted, however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amnended standards in
preparing these Financial Statements

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s Financial
Statements.

- Onerous contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract {Amendments to LKAS 37)

- Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising front a single transaction (Amendments to 1A8 12)
- Reference to conceptual framewark (Amendments to SLFRS 3}

- Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before Intended use (Amendments 1o LKAS 16)

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to LKAS 1)

- Annual Improvements to SLERS standards 2018-2020.

- Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to LKAS 8)

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to LKAS 1)
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4.1
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For the year ended 3§ March

Revenue
Accommodation income
Food jncome

Beverage income

Others

Other income

Sundry income

Cperating rent income - EKHO Lake

Change in [air value of financial assets at FVTPL (Note 18)
Stock Write-hack :

Net finance incomel/{ensts)

Finance income

Interest income

Gain on ranslation of foreign currencics
Interest income on related party loan

Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafts

Loss on translation of foreign cumencies
Interest expense on loans

Interest expense o0 leases

Others finance costs

Met finanee income:{costs) recognized in profit or loss

Profit/{Loss) before income tax

Loss befure income tax is stated atter charging all expenses
including the following:

Auditors' remuneration - Statutory audit
Diepreciation on property, plant & equipment
Amortization of intangible asscls (Note 14,17
Amortization of ROV asset {Mote 15.1)

Charity & donation

Provision made / {reversal) Tor bad & doubtlul debts
hlanapement Fees

Staff costs {Note 10.1)

Srafl costs

Wapes, salaries and staff expenses

Dcfined contribulion plan cost - EPF & ETF

Defined henefit plan cost - employee benefits (Mote 27.1)

Group Company

W22 2021 2422 2021

Rs. Rs, Rs. Rs.
150,797,882 66,402,869 124,369,569 45,521,192
144,513,710 140,643,842 102,503,052 88,621 583
11,029,200 2,450,802 11,029,200 1,260,892
3,030,052 923,741 2.425,241 864,573
309,370,824 210,421,254 241,247.062 136,868,240
276,784 126,321 270,784 126,321
2,450,000 TH0,000 2,450,000 FIL000
140,000 87,500 140,000 7,500

1,293,012 1,293,012 -
4,159,796 061,821 4,159,796 263,821
51,334,362 42409316 69,434 10,414
309,653.510 47,637,527 2,634,830 197,337
8,658,873 8,909,714 24,083,418 33,459,343
569,646,745 98,950,577 26,787,632 33,687,324
24,000,891 4.892,43) 4.822,404 4,781,912
174,652,751 B555,707 174,652,751 8555707
§3.532.444 &1.,642.476 72,775,120 570958 964
16,985,282 18,195,047 1a352,078 17,471,48]
67,363 - - -

299,251,733 113,256,280 268,602,353 38,708,064

270395012 (14329703) _(241,814,671) (55,110,740}
972,720 850,000 586,500 510,000
92,040,767 1,609,026 67231107 67,086,536
1,413,086 1,854,566 644,953 1,661 825
4,794,499 4,389,283 4,474,927 4,069,711
46,850 20,790 46,850 20,790
203,044 11952410 203,044 12,256,600
8,085,055 - 6,893,102 3
59,815,594 70,785,557 44,122,239 48744686
54417246 64,895,184 40,273,074 44,590,087
4,391,740 4,727,026 3,053,408 3259077
1,006,608 1,113,347 795,757 895,522
59815594 70.795,357 44122239 4% 744,686
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11 Incowme tax reversal
The Company and its subsidiaries are lable Far income tax st the rate of 14% on its busincss profit and ar 2434 on other sources of income a3
per the provisions of tnland Revenue {Amendment} Act Mo, 10 of 2021 and subsequent amendments thereto.

For the vear ended 31 March Group Company

2022 221 |y d 2021

Rs. Es. Rs. Rs.

Current tax
Inuame lax expense for the vear (Note 11.1) L1602 - -
Ohver provision in respect of previous year (251,230 - {291.23%) -
Dieferred tax reversed during the year (Nute 28) (18.640,361) [18,710,868) {16,789,497) (19,670,730)
ESC Wrirten CHT 1,766,021 1,216,281

(17,143,977} (18,710,868 [L5.464455} 36707300

1L1L  Reconciliation beoween aecounting profit and income tax on
current year profit

Profili{[.oss) befure income 1ax 191,208,156 [148,562,063% [281,770,53%) (160,384, 364)
Adjugiment on disallowable expensas 324,796,473 170,004,159 297,724,863 133,533,793

Adjustment on allowahls expemses (97.925,325)  [105.73304) (§1,850,925) {B8,701,756)
Exempl income (581,951,188} (123,930 9873 (24,292,852) (34,239,987)
Adjusted business loss for the year [163,171,844) [208,621.%%5) {90,219,453) (143,770,314)

Taxahble prafit from business income
‘Taxahle other income 6473 - -
Taxahle income 04673 - -

Income tax (@ 14% =
Incame tax (@ 24% 1,602 - - =
Incnme 1ax on current year profits 1,402

11,2 Tax lagses

Tax lass Brought forward 807 863,463 T08.121,658 T2L. 406,493 377,490,176
Adjustment to hrought forward balanee {1,655 ,6680) 12,880,190} (1,139,285} (3,854,597}
Laoss incurred during the year (Mote [1.1] 164,025,384 208621995 90,219,453 147,770,314
‘I'ax losses carmied forward §.060.233.1587 297,863,463 E10.486,6061 T21,406 493

Crctails of Brought forward tax lasses on which deferred tax assests s recognised und not cecognised are mentioned under Note 25.1 and 282
respeclively.

12 Profit/{(Loss) per share

121 Profat'(Loss) per share
Profity( Loss) per ordinary share has been calculatzd by dividing The boss anributable 1o equity holders of the company by the weighted average
mumber plordiniry shares n issue duriog the yeu.

Croup Company
For the pear ended 31 March 2012 2021 20212 2021
Fiotit{Loss) atiribuiable to equity holders of the Company (Rs.) H, 052,173 (133251,195)  (265906,084) (140713634}
‘Weighted averape number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 297918001 257 518,001 297,918,001 297,98, 041
Protit{Loss) por share (Hs.) .70 {0,443 {1.89) (047

12.2  Diluted Frofiti(Loss) per share
There were na poterdial dilutive ordinary shares autstending sl any lime ducing the year. Therefore, diluted Profitflass) per share is same ag
basic [*rofit'{Loss} per share shown above,
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As at 3 March

14 Intangible assets
Computer software (Note 14.1)
Goodwill on acquisition (Noete 14.2)

14.1  Computer sofiware
Cost
Az at 01 April
As at 31 March

Amecrtization
Asat 01 April
Charpe for the vear
As at 31 March

Carrying amount
As at 31 March

As at 31 March

14.2  Goodwill on acgnisition
Ceylon Hotels Maldives (Private) Limited

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
17,066 1,430,152 14,235 539,188
576,351 576,351 - =
593.417 2.006.503 14,235 639,188
13,624,757 13,624,757 9,842,543 5,842,543
13,624,757 13.624,757 9,842,543 3,842,343
12,194,605 10,340,039 9,183,355 7.521.530
1,413,086 1,854,566 644,953 1,661,825
13,607,691 12,194,605 9,828,308 5,183,355
17.066 1,430,152 14.235 659,188
Group
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
576,351 376,351
576,351 576,351

14.2.1 Goodwill as at the reponting date has been tested for impairment aod oo impairment was found in carmying value,

As ar 31 March

15 Leases
15.1  Right of use assets

Cuost

Agat0l Agril
Additions

As at 31 March

Amortization

Asal 0] April

Amortization during the period
As at 31 March

Carrying amount
Asat 31 March

Right of use assets are in respect of following properties, which are currently on

Development Authority,

- The Surl — Bentota

- The Safari — Tissa

- The T.ake — Polonnaruwa

- The Lake House — Polonnarinwa

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
124,394,898 124,394 ROR% 12H,524,341 120,826,341
124,394,898 124,354 BOH# 120,826,341 120,826,341
7469170 3,079,887 6,830,126 2,760,315
4,794,499 4,389,283 4,474,927 4,069,711
12,263,669 7469170 11,304,953 6,830,026
112,631,229 116,925,728 109,521,388 113,996,313

lease with Sri Lanka l'ourism
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15.2

16.1

16.2

16.3

144

52

Group Company

As at 31 March 2012 2021 w22 M1

Rs, R Rs. Rs.
1.ease liahilities
Asat 01 April 161,240,489 143,044 820 154,626,735 137.155,254
Additigns - - - -
Interest sxpense 16,084,252 18,195 6689 16,352,078 F7.471 481
l.ess: Payments made during the year (9,110,261 - [7,643,174) -
As at 31 March 169,119,510 161,240,489 163,335,639 154,626,735
Current 45,151,259 25,060, 180 44,311,931 23,801,185
MNur - current 123,968,251 136,180,302 119,023,708 130,825,550

169,119,510 161,240,489 163,335,635 154,626,735

There were na any maodifications to the original terms and conditions af the fease conlracls as at the year ended 31 March 2022,

Group Company

As ar 31 March 1022 2021 22 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Ks,
[nvestment praperty
Balance at the beginning of the year 200,747,268 - 200,787,968 -
Cnst transferred from property, ptant and squipment = 216.341,987 - 216,141 987
{1 Accumﬂat.:d depreciation transferred from property, . (15.554,019) . (15:554,019)
plant and cquipment
Fair Value Loss (¥,550,000) (8,550,000)
Balance al the end of lhe year 192,237,968 200,787,968 192,237.968 200,787,968

Reqlal income earned from investment property hy the Group and Company amounted 1o Rs. 2,450,000/ (2020/2021 -
750,000/

Dhrect operating expensés incured with regard to investment propetty by the Group and Company amounted to Rs 344,415/
(20212021 - 214.090/-)

Fair value of the investment property is ascertained by an independent valuation carried cut by 5. Sivaskantha, Fellow Member
of Institute of Valuation of Sri Lanka, Incorporated valuer as at 31 March 2022

This investment property rented out te third parly with effect from I April 2020, Accordingly, management has transferred this
property from Property, Flant and Equipment to investment property year of 20204210

The following table shows the valuation technigues usad for the company in measaring Level 3 fair values. and the significant
unobservable inpus used for investment property as at 31 March 2022

Location : EKHO Lake - Polonnaruwa, Pothugul Pedesa, Mew Town, Polotnarnwa.

Property : Building

Valuation technique : Investment methad

Significant unohservable inputs : Range /s 6,500 - Ks 30,000 per sq. 1 Depreciation raie - 40%  Rate of Retum -
12.5% - 13%

Property valuer & qualification : & Sivaskantha, Fellow Member of lostitule of Yaluatien of 511 Lanka lncarporated
valusr

Sensitivity of the input to the fair value - Estimated fair value would increage! {decrease) if ;- Price per sy [Uincreases!
{decreases)
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17 Investments in subsidiaries

Effective
Holding %%
Direct - subsidiaries
Tizsa Kesort {Private) Limited 100%%
Ceylon Hotels Maldives {Private) Limited 1%

Company
No. of shares Value (Rs.)
2022 2021 2022 202
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,533,550 1,538,550
LI0985000 110.585,000 1,110,553,500 1,110:853,500
111985000 111,985,000 1,112.,092,050 1.112,092.050

171 Principal activities of the Suhsidiaries and Non-contrelling Interest
The following disclosure excerpt highlights the group composition and the proportion of ewnership interest held by NCIL

. Fropartion of Non -
Company n"dfoou"":‘_ﬂf Incogporation Pringiple Activities hClasshni;d interest held by controlling
peration shares he the Company (%) | interest (%)
Sri Lanka
Tizsa Kesorl {Private) Limited Hotel services Ordinary 1009 1%
Ceylon Hotels Maldives (Private} Limited Investment holding Ordinary 100% %%
Group
As at 31 Mirch 22 2021
Rs. Ra.
17.2  Investment in cquily acecunted investees
Handuvery Ocean Holidays (Private} Limiled - 795,102,982
- 705,102,952
17.2.1 Share of gain / (Inss) of equity sccounted investee {net of (ax)
As at 37 March 2022 204
Na. af shares 2,294,535 2,294,335
Share holding S04 A
Group
As or 37 March 2022 202
Rs. Rs.
Upening balance 195,102,952 TR0,450,490
(Operating loss for the year {4,997,915) [2079.258)
Other comprehensive income net of rax 47,643 404 16,731,350
Classified as Assets held for sale (Note 22) (837,748,471 -
- 795,102,982
Share ol joint venture's financial posilion
Curment asset 402,574,494 394,973,997
Won current asssl 1,255,445,260 1.136.535,642
Current liabilities (1,793,682) (727.924)
Mo current liabilities (I6A452,923) (263,329,544
1,352.743.14%  1,2467,452.171
(roup's share of net assets 676,371,575 633,726,086
Goodwill 161,376,896 161,376,896
Share of net sset allributable w equity accounted investee 837748471 195,102 982
Share of joint venture's revenue and loss
Revenue = rs
Lusses before Income tax (9,995,830) (4.158,315)
Income tax - -
(CHher comprehensive income net of tax 45,286,809 33 462,700
Total comprehensive income for the year 85,290,978 29304183
Group share ol Profit £ {Loss] after tax (4,987,915} {2,07%.238)
(rroup share of otber comprehensive income oel of tax 47,043 404 16,731,330
Share of joint venture™s toral comprehensive income for the year 41,645,489 14,652,092

53
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Group Company

As ar 34 March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Hs.
Other investments
Invesiments - fair value through profil or loss
The Kandy Hotels Company (19383 PLC {87,500 Shares) 463,750 376,250 463,730 376,250
{-1 Fair value gain {Inss} 1440000 27,501 140,000 87,500

603,750 463,750 63,750 463,750

Market value par share are basad on the price puhlished by the Colombo Stock Exchange on the last date of trading for (he linancial

year eoded 31 March 2092,

Inventories

Fand 4,507,302 33001723 305811 2174372
Beverages 3,969,661 4,030,876 1472,934 2,840,911
Crackery, linen and glassware 15,119,331 16414915 11,584,137 12501 298
Househeeping 1,442,149 1,682,760 090,505 1,221,992
Mainenance 2,101,401 1,989,577 1,751,635 1,681,060
Stativnery 669,370 749,867 375,684 368,724
{jag stock 57,208 44,744 - -
Sundry stock 848,594 755,608 333,696 37312
Amcrlizaticon o inveotory (1,555,672) (777836} [1,555,672) (177.836)
Prowision for Inventory {578,448) - (578,444} -
26,550,596 2R.212.24% 15337581 20,568,013
Trade and other receivahles
Acvounts receivables (Nowe 20013} 33.051,454 5,957,240 31,151,110 5592050
Oiher receivables (Note 20.2) 25129328 13,239,543 14,457,244 9,289,018
58,180,732 19.196.583 45,608,360 14882018
Acconnts receivables
Trade receivables 33,094,289 6,330,177 31489761 3,711,837
Iess. Frovision for bad & doubtful debis (642,833} (4728373 [338,645) (119,747
33031454 39572441 31,151,116 3,592,050
Qther receivables
Advances and prepaytients 15,288,714 31.426.813 6,640,257 3,450,072
Other receivablas 11,060,614 10648334 9,036,957 TOTITI
Less. Provision for advances & propayment {1,220,000) (1,235,854) {1,220,000) {1,235 #54)
25,129,328 13,234,343 14,457,244 9.289.928
Group Company
Asar 37 March 2022 2l 2022 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Amonnts due from reluted com panies
The Kandy FHaotels Company ( 1938) PLC 5,171,553 4,970,721 5,171,553 4,070,721
Ceylon Hotels Maldives {Private) Limited - - 497,534,236 477 k50, R19
CHC Rest Houses (Privale) Limited = 23 847 - 25 847
Galle Face Hotel 1994 {Private) Limited 77,786 - 56,444 -
CHT Yoods ('rivate) Limied 3,244,925 3,545,689 3,244,925 3,543 689
Ceylan Hotels Corporation PLC 16,512,558 4,120,656 16,512,858 49,130,656
Tissa Resort {Private) Limited - - 521,186 65,671,845
Calle Face Hote] Company Limited 140 = 100 -
Ceylon Hotel Holdings {Privale) Limited 13,#36,380 [3,836,380 13,836,380 13,836,380
Galle Face Group (Private) Limired 1,272,105 4,776,208 2,272,205 4776208
Infini Restaurant Manapement { Private) Limited = 924 - G
Ciardiner {iroup (Private) Limited 339,225 330,225 330,225 339,218
Studio Clay (Private) Limited 5 5422 5 5,432
Made in Haly Coropany (Private) Limited 2,607 2,607 2607 2,607
Sowherland Holdings (Peivate} Limited 1,517 = 1,517 -
Hadawu Ocean (Privated Limited 1,430 - - -
41,460,641 36,631,721 591,074,241 580154385
Lews: Provision for expecled credil losses [2.802,468) {3,133,063) {8.999.186) (13,349,805
IR658,173 33,498,658 582,175,055 566,404 580
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Group
Asar 37 March a2z 2021
Rs. Rs.
2 Assets held for sale
Balance beginning of the vear - -
Transfetred during the year (Mote 17.2.1) £37,748471 -
Balance end of the year BIT. 748471 -
221 (ring the year, the Group has classificd an Investment in Juint venture which is beld by Ceylon Lotzl Maldives (Private) Limited
{CHML}, & subsidiary of United Ilotels Company Limited as Assets held for sale since the cartying amount of the assets will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction ratber than through continuing use, Ceylan Hotel Maldves (Private) Limited has
enieted inte a conditional sale and purchase agreemznt on |2 Octaber 2621 with Ching Travel Intemational Investment [long Kong
Limited for a sale of the 50% stakes in Handhuvarn Ocean Halidays (Privace) 1imired (HOH} for 155% 4,493,663/ -(Approx. LKR 1.6
Bnas of st May 2022. As per the Sales Purchase Agreement, the conelusion of the Sale and the eventual transfer of Crwnership of
S0% stake, is subject to due diligence and satisfaciory conclusion of certain conditions precedents. The share of 1oss of Handhuvare
(rcean Holidays Private Limited recougnised for the year arnounted to LKIL 3 Mn.
Further the Sale of the 50% stuke Ceylon Hetel Maldives (Privae) Limited {CHMLY owms in Handhuvaru Ocean Holidays (Privale)
Limitad {HOH) was concluded a1 a consideration of T.5F 4,493,663/~ on 8 Scpiember 2022,
23 (Cush and cash equivalents
Cash sl bank 41,552 546 66,589,871 34,836,370 6,957,201
Fixed deposits 1,499,204 561 904,807.231 - -
(Cash in hand 1,493,323 1,841,570 1,062,338 1,640,420
1,542,254 973,238,672 36,598,708 8,597.621
Bank overdraft {154,305906) (137,122,168} {62,757.873) {53,896,000}
Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposc 1.387.554.564 836,116,504 (25,859,167) (45.298,379}
24 Siated capital
Group / company Mo, of Shares Value
As ar 3F March 2022 2021 2022 200
Rs. Rs.
Balance beginoing uf the year 297,918,001 297.918,00 1,937,945,824 1,.837.945 824
Ralance cod of the year 297,218,001 297,913,001 1,.937,945,524 1.937.945.324
24.1  All shares rank equally with tegand to the company’s residual assets.
24,2 ‘Ihe holders of ordinary shares are entitled (o receive dividends as declared from time to time, and arc entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company.
Group Company
As at 31 Macch 22 2021 22 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
25 Reserves
Revaluation teserve Mote 25,11 815,921,820 a10,502,030 626,630,379 490,033 323
Forcign currency cqualization reserve (Note 25.2) 104,162,979 32,519,373 - -
916,084,799 663,421,605 626,630,379 400,033 521
25.1  Revaluation reserve
The revaluation réserve comprises of the gaio arisen from the revalvatinn of property, plant and equipment.
252  Foreign currency equalizatinn reserve

The foreign currency translation rescrve comprise of all foreipn exchange ditference arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.
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As ar 31 Marcht

Interest bearing and horrowings
Analysis of interest bearing and horrawings
Balanee at the beginneng of 1he year
Lntercar montorium during the year

Exnchangy loss

Recognition of government gram

Accrued expenses

Repayments during the year
Balunce at the end of the vear

Payable aller ooe vear

Payable within one year

Tcht myratorium for Covid-19 relief for tsorism industry
Group and Company recoved a capital and intorest moratorim (from Apnil 2021 to June 20223 on the existing fetm loan and overdrafis in
accardance with the financial relicf package announced by the Govermment af Sri Lanka 10 the Tourism industry, amidst of the Covid-19 pandemic

In line with the speciticd morotonum eading dates, Management has initiated

debt portfalio,

Assets pledged and terms

Group Campany
2022 0z 2022 2021
Hs. Rs. Rs R,
LUZAT,E34 #64,251 306 &62,803,0%4 TH2,100,185
112,333,560 01418679 73, THG, ] 0 74,279 661
174,652,751 2,885,000 174,652,751 0,883,000
) 1427679 " 713,846
- 8,546,172 } _
019,147 362) 13.286.008; {8.345,9%0) 4,174,968,
1.277.081.793 | (114,242 §38 1,104,892 558 862 K03.604
e
845983542 Bad0.100.558 T40.742477 ‘___-:M
431092251 150,142 280 364,150,081 150,142 TR0

with relevant I banks 1o

it existing

Closing balance

Finaacial Principal .
= Repayment terms HRare Serurily as at 3 March
instilulion andont (Rs.) 2022 {Rs.}
Tissa Teesart (Private) Limited
21 cqual manthly
] . o
Commercal Bank :‘:““:"‘g‘s I"' Rs23 Jpes | Martgage of leasshold rights over the "The Safari
of Ceylon PLC [ 0o U@ 216,500,000 praperty and a corperate guaantes of Ks 2155 Mn fram 58,420,000
“Ferm|pan e RIS Cevlan Hotels Cerparation FLC
‘ van) 4,870,004 commence e § Lo :
[eom July 2022,
34 cqual manthly
- = instalments of Rs . T ——
wummercial Bank 1835 Mn and Final 2.5%+ Wanlgape of Leaszhald rights over the "The Sajari
sfCeylonpLC |07 T ANC MINA 50,000,000 | 5777 |property and a Comorate Guanmiee of Rs 216.5 Ma from 20,125,040
. Term Laan} ftalment i RBERR Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC
[ 1erm Lad (0,735 Min fram July e " o
PLOEFS
Bs 500,000 « 06
months, Rs.944 (K00 %
Cotmercial Hank |17 menths, 3468 Moripage of 12asehold Tights over the "Fhe Satan”
of Ceylon PLC Rs 352,000 <91 20000000 1_ Nl“ rropery and a cnmqocale guarantes of Rs 216.5 Mn from 15,500,000
vTecm Loan} moith x Ceylan otel: Corporation PLC.
commence from July
2022
Commercial Bank .I d :;:“I T“m[‘.r;y
of Ceslon PLC (02 ':‘;'? i qug | Mortizgs of leaschold rights over the “The Safaci
:Saubbagya Covid | A lanlna 10,000,000 5 property and & corporals guarantee of Ks 216 5 M from 8,933,900
i z instafment of s {ixed i i .
19 Remaissance Ceylon Hotels Corporarten PLC.
Facility) 553,650 fram July
i 2022
Commercial Bank
?]rni:::?" EEC Repavment Termis & [nicrest on the laan to be decided in oty 2022 27,235,500
haratarium 1nan)
142,173,190
Sovernmenl Grant {27,889y
139.865.907
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16
6.4

Inierest eating and borrowings {U'oni )

Assels pledged and

terms (Cont.}

. . Closing balance sx
_F'"_’“,M Repayment (erms Principal Taie Security #t 31 March 2022
institulion amaunt (Ra.}

{Ra}
United Totels Company Llnited
Primary morgage bond over Jeasehol d
nghts of “The Lake House" Polonnaruwa
Commercial Bask (47 cgual montkly instalments of property awned by Lhe Eri Larka
of Ceylon PLC E5 | 23 Win commence fonm July ¥5.000000 |2 5% + AWPLR [ Toodsm Developrnent Authon ity for Rs. 55,730,000
(Term 1.pan} 022 75 Mo and Corporate guaraniee of Rg
75 Mn [rorn Ceyion Hotels Comparation
rLe
Carporate puarantee from Ceylom Elotels
Lnrporation PLC fo- Rs 3 75 bn and
Comoercial Bank  |Rs S00L,000 % D5 months primary moortpage bond aver leasshold
of Ceyln PLC Bs. 972,222 x 17 months 20000003 | 346% fixed  [rights of “The Lake Flouse" Balunnarusa 14.000,000
Teqtn Loan} Rs 972,226 = 01 month property owned by the Se Lanka
Tourism Drevelopment Authocly Tor Rs
75 M
Commerceal Bank
J;i::?’ ERS Fepaymant Terms & [nderest on the [oan to be decided in Tuly 2022 20,636,457
Moraturum Loar)
Cargills Bank T8 equal principal 1S 3291000 & & rocnth s Puimary {loating mortgage hond
Limmuted [lerm i | uss LIBOR+ 5 A5% |for USTL 1.5 M:lian aver the 316,255,290
Loam } [gomvenc'ng (rom July 20223 | 206,00 {Flagr &%) |leasehnld propemy “The Surf™
[I5 & 462 290 (LKR 132, 244, 710) Carved oot and absabed in 4o 1he Cagital Maratorium Loaa
Carglls Hank Repayment penad will be desided 6 months FPritmary floating momigage bond
Limtted {Term efler end of the maralorivr LSS 442200 | LIBOR - 5.85% |for LSO 1.5 Midon aver the 132,244,710
Loan’ period [Flooc 6% |leascheld propery “The Surf*
Cargills Bank Tepayment period will be desided & roonths Trimary Foating morigage bond
Limzted (Tenn afier end of the moratorium VS5 268,608 | LIBOR- 5 84% |for LS 1.5 Million aver the H0,315,751
Loan pezind [Flaor $%]  |lcaschald praperty “The Sarf’
Carpills Bank Rs 5,833,233 313 x 5% months Rs A
I.im%te,d (Term  |5,833.393 53 x i monih ss0go000p| 2o I W |Comurate guacanes fiom Ceylan Hacls 210,000,000
3 AWILE* Carparation PLC for By 330 Mo
Loan} [eommencing Fum July 2022)
KR 140,000 Carved nut and ghsabed in o the Capital b Laary
CZargills Bank
Limited (Termn Repaymeni penad wall be desided
Lean}-Inieiest  [after end af the macatorium 140,000,000 1"}: T B Raner+ g::ﬁ:;:?j”;g‘f{22T3§:ﬂ°: il 140,000,000
tomiorium lean  |pericd
LKR Loan)
L.::'EIILI': g‘;:]hma 23 eyual munthly instaloents of )
il Rs 695 833 and Fima' ingta’ment 16,700,004 1% fined <ormora: puatantee from Ceylon Hotels 4175 136
il ol Rs. 595 84| (Cammenced Tiom . o Corporation PLC for Bs 167 Mn, —
Renaissance
. Oigtober 20201
Facality)
Carpills Bank
Limiced (Term Tepayment penad and the incarest | e TE fate +
Loand - Inerest rales will be desided after end of 119,074 452 1% 10074452
Wdoratprium Lazn  [ihe maralnoum period
LKK Loan)
:'.mgi”s s Hepayment perisd and Lhe interest
Limited (Term | il b desided afist ond uf o ane| | YT D Rote 6,692,366
Luan) - Inceret Une wedniatoeim period 1
Moratorium Laan)
107,163,012
Jiovernment Grant (2270455
104 £92,557
Ceylan Hotels Maldives {Private] Limited
Llution Natienal Bapayiment termns & interes tates will be decided on aller end of momtonum peried 3222333
Bank PLLC ([nierest
Moratorium 1.oan)
2.225.534
Total 1277081791

* AWFIR - Average Weighied Primary Lending Rate

AW DR - Average Weighle! Deposil Bale
#*4 LIBOR - London [markonk ftered Rane
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Group Company
As at 27 March i 2021 2022 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Hs.
7 Employee bencfits
At the beginning of the year 4,266,837 3 k44,829 3,510,201 3,364.L13
Txpenses ieeognised in the profit or loss {vore 27,13 LG, 608 L1137 798,757 £95,522
1065 reengniged o (0T {Note 272} 248,381 573,585 326,369 517, k60
Jaymenis made during the year (717,158} (1,364 9243 {717,118) (1.268,013)
At ke end of the year 4,504,708 4.266.837 5.815,299 3,513.3291
27.1 Expenses recognised in the profil or loss
Current service cost 668, TR 09, 640 503,970 542206
Past Service Cost 77,508 - TT.650 -
[ntoTes) cost 260,277 403 707 214,128 353 116
1006, 608 1.113.347 TY5.757 #405,522
272 Expenses recognised in OCI
Actuarial loss 243,381 673,345 326,364 517,869
248,381 673,585 320,369 517669

273 Gratuity Liability is based un the weluaral valuation caried out by Wesams. Actuaral and Management Consultants {Private} Limited,
Actuanies, on 31 March 2022,

This ohligation is not cxicmally fonded.

174 Priociple assumptions used
The prineipal assumptions used in actuarial valuation are 45 fvllows

Group Company
Forthe penr ended 37 Morch 2012 2021 2022 21
|. Disconnt tate 13% 6. 10% 13% B.10%
2. Fulure salary increase
- Excoutives 12% fi% 12% 6%
- StafT 12% &% 1% %
3. Refirement ape 6l Years 55 Years &0 Years 5% Yrarg

[n addution 1o the above, demographic assumplions such as morllity, wilhdrawal and disabiity, and retiremen! age were considered for the
actuarial valuation, A 6747 moctality table" issued by the [nstitute of Actuarics, Londan was used to estimace the gratuity linbility uf the
Company,

275 Duning the year 2021/22, Employes Bonefil obligations wore adjusted to reflect new fogal requirenient as per wminimum rate age ol warkers
Act Mo 2% of 2021 regarding the reticement age. As a result af the plan amendment, the Company defined henefit ablipation decreased by
Rs. 77.368/={2020/21 - Nill) A cormespanding past service onst credit to prodit or loss.

276 Sensitivity of assumptions employed in actuarial valuation
The following table demansirates the sensitivily Lo a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other variables
held consiant in the employment henelit Lahility meassoremant.

The scnsitiviry of the Income Statemenl and the Slateent of Financial Position is the effect of the assumed changes in discount rate and
salary inceement 1ate on the probit or loss & empleyment benefit obligation for the year.

Lirpup Company

Ax ot 37 Marel: paliil pive) 22 n21

Rs. s Rs. Rs.
Discount Kate
Tnereased by 1% ($9.525) (35,9135) 172,045) 1712023
Drecreayed by 1% 93,704 w0102 75,103 74,5591
Salary Increment
Inereased by 1% 77 AT 72,943 62494 60479
Tecreased by 1% (75.547) (70 822) 60679 (58.705]

b1 Deferred rax liabilitics

Batanece al the beginnng of the year £1,477,237 B0,282.407 41,618,545 6l381.777
Deferred rax impact on revaluation 40,615.331 - 31,044,475 -
Deferred tax reversal an actuanial loss 13,774} {94302} {45,692} 72,502}
Diefermed tax reversal for the year - Profi or loss (18,640.361) {18.710.868) (16,789,497) (19.670,75)
Ealance at the end of Lhe vear 83417433 61477237 56,447,831 41 638 545
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As at 3 March

Deferred tax liabilitics (Cont.)

Temporary difierences

On property, plant and equipment / investment. property
Prevvisiom for Inventories

Provisinn for Trade & other receivables

Brovision for Amounis duc from related companies

O retiement benefit obligalion

O carried forward tax lnsses

On ieages

Tax clfect @ 14%
Loreengnised deferred tax assels

Tax losses
Deforred tax effect

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rs. Rs, Rs. Hs,
1,585,767,243 1311979975 1,284,100,675  1,058,117,557
(578,448) - [STH,44%) i
{1.862,835) - (1,558,645) 5
{2,802,46%) - (8,899,186} -
(4,804,708) (4,266,838) (3,915,299 (3,510,2913
(P22.891,602)  (B24.275257)  (R0%279.85E) 716,559,064)
(56,988,277) {44,314,758) (53,814,250} {40, 630,420)
595,838,815 439 123,122 406,055,941 297.418,182
83,417,433 61,477,237 56,847,832 41,638,545

137,341,495

73,588,206

1,206,805

4847429

19,237 809

101302 5349

168,253

678610

Deferred tax assels bave not been recognised in respect of the above portion af tax Inases, hecause i1 is not probable that future 1axable
profit will be gvailable againgt which the eonupany can utilise dbe benefits therefrom,

T'rade & ather payahles
Trade creditars

Areryed rent

Accrued expenses

Other payables

Government grants

Balance ss at 01 April

Recognized doring the year

Set-off against interest expenses during the year
Fodification Lo government praot

13alance ag at 31 March

Non-current portion
Current portion

Group Company
2012 221 2022 mzl
Es. Rs. Rs. Bz,
24,760,556 24417736 21,396,720 18,726 647
4,244 358,053 4k, 244 358,053
11,352,144 5,113.902 9,334,787 5085642
6,200,621 57,746,537 52,214,402 43,757 256
102,713,565 A7,236, 228 83,546,153 67,907,593
2,961,023 4,388,702 1,480,412 2,194,258
= 1,505,449 - T5L,730
(3,660,000} {2,933,128) (1,854,400} (1,466,576)
5,177,320 2,644,443
4,478,343 2,961,023 2,270,455 1,480,412
1,220,276 2849704 614,727 1,424,804
3,258,067 115319 1,651,728 5608
4,478,343 2,961,023 2,270,455 1,380,412

o 14 November 2014, the Group has obrained a enm loan facility under "Fntemprisc 5 Lanka™ special intercts subsidy loan schems
proposed by the government to strengthen the 1ourism industry. The interest suhsidy will be paid by the Ministry of Finance,

Ay at 3§ Mareh

Amounts due to related companies

(iFH Management Company [Frivate) Linnted
Galle Face Hatel Company Limited

Galle Fare Group {Private} Limited

Ceylon Hotels Corporarion #LC

CHC Rest Houses (Private) Limited

Income tax payable / (receivables)
Talance at the heginnmng of the year
Incame tax over paid

Ralance at ihe end of the year

Inewms Lax payable
Ineeme tax receivable

Group Company
2072 2021 2022 221
Rs. Rs. Rs. s,
1,184,269 - 784,269 -
- 152418 - -
1,264,676 BOR,593 -
24,620,353 24,378,963 " -
504,231 - 504,231 -
27,573,529 23539974 T5R.500 =
{2,613,104) (2.613,164] 75017 LT
(291,239 - (291,239 -
(2,904.403) (2.613,164) (2156310 73617
- 75,617 - 73617
(2,904,403) (2.6BB.T81) {215,622} -
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33 Heolsied party dlsclosures
3l

Transatlions with vebated compunies

The Conicany camies mut Irnsicaens in b arrlinary crnrse el s businass wil jaics wio are defined as relaled parties in the Sn Lanky Accpimiing siandand (LEAS) 2 " Ralaied
panty Disclosure”, the derls of which ore reported balow,

Natre of Year enilvd Yew erded
Munic of the cappany | N Name of the directors Nalure of Lransaction SM.034.2022 4103 5021
relatvonship [Rs.) (Rl
("ylon Hotels Parnt Mr. Sangoey Gandiner Expenses puid by C1C en behallaf UHTL 1,308,291 149,284
Carpatiun PLC AT, Lathghmuaie Smnuus nghe Feinursement of experses paid my CHL on behall ol UTICT. REZ,586 -
M, Privanih s Mafcumaye Ficpuerien pacd by DACL o behalf of CHC 1,187 868 -
M, Kuwerz De Zovsa Selllemant ol relnal pary hilarce - 16,1172
i Mangala Boyageda Tunmpoiary advance given by UHCL 650,000 006 SO0
. |EHC Feods 12nvore) Affilioee | Mr, Loeshmir Samiras cahe bispierisus puwd by U=CL on behalf of CHCF T8, L4R 81,063
[ 4 & c Ay . . p
frlced M. Priyuaiths Masduniaye [Reirnbursemont o2 sesenses pad by UHIK:. un helll of CHCE asey| e
Trd Iransferes 10 HOF - 3,380,047
T1850 Rt {Provaie) Subsidizny M1 Priyaatha *addunage =xpenses paid by UHCL on behalt of TR1. 1,187,991 013,618
imized hr. Latshman Samorasinghe Reimbuzsemerd of espenses pad by LT on lekal ol TR (2,087,405 150,407
urd hrareferes from LETCL (15.850,154) -
ICiE= Managen-en| Al [Mr Sazgeey Gandien (Chairnian)  [Expenzes paid by OFEM on beho' 2 o7 LTICT (20,821,581} (14,056,578
e Cirlva:c! M Lakshirian Samardiingie o b o of sepenses pand by 4113 b chalf of U1 20580316 | 279257
htr Priviatha hsalurnzye
Cewlom Haoeels Wal dives Subsidiay  [hr, |Lakshman Samarzzingie Fured translors from LI L I0L e ACRpINEY| (i) 900,NN0)
iPrivale) Lamansd A Privaacka Madduraoe Interest [neme A WTR D 24483,417 33.459,542
{CHT Rest Howses Afilte. M Lakshmian Semarasing Faporawy peid b LHCL an bebol £ of CHCRA S0 721 3.390.526
l Friated Limited r Priyanthi Maild amape Renmhurscinent of expenses paid by DHCL FENTENGHT T SR AN )
Sentlement af Advances ieceivec 1o LIHCL 544,322 12,631 987
Soitlement of Fxpences pand by CECCRIT i behalf of THCL LS .
CHCRH advanue rseeswed 1o 1L bark accpunt 8,040,011 0) a
al.e Face Hote] 1954 Affihate. Mz Sangeey Gandie |Fnpsenses paid by GFH 1994 on behal l of UHEZ. 16BR,675) -
[ Feivale) Limiss bz, [akshman Sarnaaunghe St e af relacd party balaroe 45,120 5,008,527
Gardiner Group (Privale) Adlilale [M: Lzshsbin Saminasinghe Assuts Il In (1. - FRTREES
| nned
T'he Kandy e AfTiiale  [br Sanjeey Gazdiner (Charmonl [Expunsss pael by DHUL s ehalf of KHCL 1,083 341
Compire ¢ 19.38) PILC hAr Erivantha Maddemagy R ribuarsement of expenses pad by Ui (RAZ529)
hs. Lakshman Soenarasinghe Agsete lansfer rom LIACY, -
Cialle Fate Group Allitae (M Sakszman Sarnarasinghe |Fapenses paid by GEG en behall el CHOL (H0447,979}
(Evivote) Liznited {Setement o velawzs party valanee -
of expenses paid by GEG on behall ol CHEL 10,489,433
Survizs fze ohlmned dunng e vea: (6 M, il :
Seolemap! ol sorvice Fee ciatame:d durimg the vear EEEEY ) -
bdadec In [hly (Prvae) Allihate  [Mr Lokshian Sanarasinghe Espenses pad by GFG on behalFof dd1L - n
_irniezd ILeirn b arsmee of e nenses paid by GFG or brehal©ar A - (6.313)
S ludio Clay [Privity) Allihake [ Lakahroan Samasinglc Faneases pué by THCL on belall of SC 23,668 26450
imited Finbwseonenl of expenses paid by JHCL 120,108 (IR
iGa’le Face Hotel Himate R Saejecs Gardinee (Ckacnman!  [Fued ansteres frorn 119,599,559 181, 5564,0407)
Canpany Limited Farenl Mot Lakshrnan Sandasinghe Fure tansfieres Ll 13,5498, 652 81,338,097
Infani Rasiauran? Afibate [P Lahshoan Sanaanghe Foaguenses paid by THCL on bebul £ of IRM - BR0,
* MLavagement §Privals) 12 Lursmen of ewpenses paud by UHCL on behalf of IRM 1926 [EX 1
Lo

* Thus Mol shaw! b el in csgueclivn sith ez Hoe 21, and 31 Amous due lrom related companies, amd Amoim?, dus By ealed eom pades cespectvely,

rylon Horels Comparatian FI0° CHE
Galle Face Haz| Company L rled GFH
Gialle face Secel 1994 Prodate) Limiled GIH 163
Usnied Towels Ca. Linnid Lkl
Kamdy |zl Cempany (19383 PLC KFICL.
CEFL Munagesen Co. (Pnvazed Lirined GFHM

AR Reesd Himsas (Prvased Lot CTICRED
L1 Tonds i Privar CHCF
Tissa Rcsor 1Mvale) Laimilee TRL.
Crylon Hatels Haldings ¢Proaned anbad [a(}1f)
Giala Face Grsnn Provaiey Lamiesd CFC

Siud’p Clay (Prsaled Lamiles e
Pdade In Tty ¢Privales Loraed
f Resiarard Minagueman (P vt Linnted
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i3 Related party disclosures (Cont.)
332 ‘l'vansactions, arrang ts and agr 1s involving KM P and their close family members (C1'M)

According to §1i Lanka Accounting Standard "Related Party Disclosures" (LKAS 24). Key management personnz|, are those
having authority and respansibility for planning, Jireoing and conmedling the activitics of the entity, Accardingly, the baard af
directors of the company and its parent {including executive and non-executive directors) have been classified as key
management personnsl of the company.

CFM of the KMPs are those family memhers who may be expeeted to influsnce or be influenced by that KPMs in their dealing
with the entity. They may inchude KPMs domestic partner and children of the KMPs domestic partner and dependents of the
KM1's domestic partner. CFM are related parties to the company. There were no transactions carrisd out with above parties.

There were no emoluments paid o key management persommel during Lhe year

34 Contingent liabilities
There were no naterial contingent liabilities for the Group other than those disclosed below, as at the balance sheet date,

The Compary is purswing ar is being pursued with Yegal action on the following legal cases. As per the represemation given by
the managsment these cases are still omstanding as al 31 March 2022,

3.1 Litigations and elaims
34.1.1 1nited Hotels Company Limited
Name Nature Case Mo,
Bentola Pradeshiva Sabha Operating a SLTDA approved Hetel, without a valid Livense MC Balapitiya/23263/P5
Bentota Iradeshiva Sabha Operating a SLTDA approved Hotel, withoul a valid Licenss MC Bulapitiyve/ 344 32/P5
Bentota Pradeshiya Sabha Operating » S1.TDA approved Hotel, without 2 valid License MC Balapitivad3335/F5

34.1.2  Tissa Resort (Private) Limited

Name MNature Case Mo,
Labowr Vepartment Labour Department HC Hambantheta/H.C A 0572022
Labour Lepartment Labouwr Dzpartment 1C VambanthotarHC A (442022
Labour Deparment Lahour Department MO Tissarmaharama§ 31938 T
Labour Department Labour Department MC Tissamaharama/@193%1LT

Although, there can be oo assurance, the directors belisve, based on the infurmation currently availahle, that the ultimale
resolution of such legal procedurss would nat likely have a material adverse affect on the results of eperations, financial
pogition or liquidity of the company. Acconlingly no provision for any liability fas been made in the financial stalements, nor
has any liability heen determined by the ongoiog lepal cases, as at 3] March 2422,

35 Capital commitments
There were o material capital commitments which require disclosure in the financial statements as an teporting date.

kL Lvents occuring after the balance sheet date
There have heen no maierial events gecurring after the reporting date that cequare adjustment {o or disclosure in the Linancial
Statements, other than disclosed below,

36.1 Surcharge Tax
As per the Surcharge Tax Aot Ne. 14 of 2022, the Group of Companies Lhat have samed a axahble income for the Year of
Agsessment commencing from Olst April, 2021 would be taxed st 25%. Since the Group taxable income for the Year of
Assessment 202172022 is less than the threshoid, the Company is oot Tiahle for Surcharge Tax.

37 Financial insfrumcnts
37.1  Financial risk management

Overview

‘The Company is exposed ta the following risks from its vse of tmancial instruments;
a) Cradit risk

b} Liquidity risk

€1 Market risk
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Financial instruments {Cont.)

Flnaneial risk management {Cont.}

This nate presents infonmation aboul the Group's expussre 18 sach of the ahave risks, the Group®s ohjectoess, polices and processes for measoing and
managing usk, and the Group’s managemont of capual

Credit risk

Credit risk is the rigk of lnancial logs ta the Group if @ customer or counterparty to a financial ingtrument Tailx Lo meet it comraclual ohligations, and
urises principally from the Group's receivables from customerns.

Exposure to credit risi

The carryang amount of financial assers represents the madmun credit exposure The mucmum exposure to credit cisk at ths reporting dale was as
follows

Group Company
At e 3 March 2022 2621 022 02|
R, Rs. Rs. Bs.
“Frade and other receivables 42,592,165 15,365,770 38,965,073 11,431 %46
Amounts due From relaled compenies 3% 658,173 33,498 658 582,175,055 566 B 540
Cash at bank & fixcd deposits. 1,540,757,147 $71,397,102 35836370 6,557,201

1.622 307 585 L0240, 365,530 656,979 495 585,193,728

Trade and ather reecivables
The creditwiorthiness of each customer is evaluated prior o sanctioning credit facilities. Appropriate pracedures Tov fallow-up and recovery are in
ace ur monitor credil risk.

Age anadysix of Trade bles: Cimpany

Ax at 3 Maorch 2622 1-30 days 30 - 120 days Dwver 120 days Tatal
Trade receivables - Gross (Rs.} 18,702,963 17,033,191 1,669,779 37.405,939
Pruvision Tor doubilul delss {Rs.) [ 335, 645) - - {33845}
‘Trade receivablas - Ner (K.} 18,364,324 17.033.190 1,689,779 ITO6T.2%4
Axat 31 March 2027 0-30 days 30 - 1) days Crver 120 davs “Lotal
Trade receivables - Grass (Rs ZBEL,I07 - 2,730.730 5.711.837
Prowision far douhiful dehts {Rs,) (114,747} - - 1119.147]
Tradz receivables - Net {Rs } 2.861.360 - 2730730 5.592.050

Amounts due From related companies
Management boticves that there is ne credit risk from the recervables from the related partics, because these counterpantics are nader the control of the
Company's ultimate sharcholders, who are £ Iy healthy companics

These balances represent amount receivabile on demand. At Company level these related party exposares are closely monitored to aveid any negative
impaet by way of credis risk

Cash at bank
‘The Company Himits its exposure 1o credit risk on bank balances by maimaming balances with reputable and credit wartby banks having high eredit
TohnEs

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk i the risk that the Group will rol be ahle ta mast its Tinancial ohiigations os they fall due The Group’s approach o managing liquidity
it 10 ensure, as Jar as possible, that A will alveays have sufficient loquidity 10 mest es liakalities when due, ndes both normal and stressed cond ilions,
without Incurming unaccepiable |osses or ncking damage o the Geoup's reputation. The Growp manages liguidity risk by meirlainng adequate
reserves, banking facilitics and reserve bormowing facilitics, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and malchong the maturity
profiles of financial assels and liahililies

‘The followsng are the comtractual maturicies of finarcial habiianes, inclading interest payments and exeluding the impact of nesting apreements:

Group

Carryin Conlraciual cash | 3 months or less | 3 o 12 months More than 1
st ane iH2S amount ngs.} Nows (Rs.} {Rs.) {Rs.) year (Rs)
Inieresi bearing barrowings 1.Z77.081.,793 1,277,081, 795 = 431,192,251 845,080,542
‘Lrade and ather pavables 102313321 102,313,321 12313321 - =
Lease liahilities 169,118.510 435,722,142 4,317,584 13,059,133 415,343,123
Amounts dug to related companics 27,573,520 27.573.52% 27,573,529 - -
Bank everdralt 154395900 154,355 906 154,355,906 - =
Trvlal 1,720 484 059 1597, 066,601 2RE.600.642 444.151,384 1,264 334.6635

i : 1 h bl han |
As ar 31 March 2021 Carrying amount | Centractual cash | 3 months or less 3 12 manths. lgre than | wear

(Rs ) Flavws {Bs.) {Rs} {Rs) (K}
Interest bearing Lomowinzs 1,016,242 838 1.010.242 838 = 150,42 280 £60.100.538
Trade and other payables A5 RTRATS 86 878,175 B6,87E,1 75 - 5
Lease liabilwies 161,240 463 459,456, /52 33,500,389 20,154,233 A35722,14(
Arounis dus 1o relaled companies S 974 25.53%.974 25339971 - -
Bank pverdraft 137,122,168 137,122,158 137,122 L6k - =
Toral 1.42] 023 644 1.749344 917 ELER U] 170 296,51 1 D295 RED BOR
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371 Financial risk management (Cont.)

Company

Asat31 March 2022 Carrying Contraciual cash | 3 months or less | 3 4o 12 months Morc than 1

amount (Rs.) flovws {Rs.) (.} {Rs.} vear (Rs)
Interest bearing borrowings 1,104,892 558 L,EU4, 892 555 - 364,150,080 740,742 477
Tratle und ather payvables $3.145,904 83,145,909 £3,145,900 =2 -
Lease liabilities 161,335,619 428,447,142 4,092,886 12,384,133 411,970,123
Bank gverdrafi 62,757,875 62,157 875 62,7587 875 - -
[otal 1.414.920,481 1.680.03i 984 150,785,170 376.534.214 1.[52.71 2600

As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Contractual cash | 3 months or less | 3 to 12 months Morc than 1

amupunt {R&.} flows [Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.} year {Rs.)
Interest bearag barrowings RA2 803,694 %42 803,694 - §50,142 280 712,661,414
‘l'rade and other payables BT 545547 67543 543 67,549 543 - -
Lease liatnlities 134 826,737 479,491,761 31,902,888 19,141,733 428,447,148
Bank overdraft 53,896,000 53,896,000 33,896,000 - -
Tntal [.138.875.974 1,463,740, 998 153.548.431 159,284,013 i 141108554

The Group ciasely monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other revewvables together with cxpecied cash outflows on
trade and othar payables.

) Market risk
Market sk is the nsk that changes in market prices. such as forcign exchange rates, interest rates and cquity prices will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The ohjective nf market risk management is (0 manage aod connal macket
risk exposuTes within acceptable parameters, while spiimizing the retunn.

Interest rate risk

The Company has borrowings with variehle intersst rates of AWPLE would expose the Group to shilow/profits as the amount of interest
paid would be changed dependmg on market ntercst rates, Further. The Central Bunk of Sri Lanka (CBSL} adopted a dghtening
mounetary policy slance daring the latter half of the financial year, resulting in an vpeward trending interast rates. Elovaled pressures on
milation on account of many fctors including incresses in global commeduy prices, feod supply and the sharp demeciation af the
curmency in March 2022 have resulled in sirong, palicy actions Yy the CTESL on manetary policy post the end of the repornng, period. Such
autions have raised monetary policy rates significantly and helped bridac the gap between palicy and market interest rates.

At the end of the reporting perigd the Company®s mtaest-beacag financial instruments were as Tollows:

Group Company
Az ut 3 March 022 0] 2 2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Variable rate instruments
Tuiterest hearing hormaiwings 1,277,081,793 P010,242 B33 740,742,477 862,803,654
Bauk overdraft 154,395,906 137,122,168 2757875 53,896,000
1.431.477.699 1,147 365,006 803,500,352 016,694,694

Cash flow seasitivity Tor variable rate insiruments
A change of 1% i intercst rates al the end of the reporting period would have inereasedi{decreased) profit or loss by the amannls shown
below. This analysis assumes thal all olher variables rermain congtam

Group Company
For the peir ended 37 Morclt 022 2021 01Z anzl
Rs. it Rs. Es.
Yaviable rate insiruments
[nicrest rate increased by 1% 14,314,777 [1,473,650 5,035,004 Q166997
[nterest rate decreased by 1% (14,314,777} (1L ATE 650 (%,0.35,004) (9,166,997

i} Frrcign currency risk
Fareign currency risk 13 the risk that the fair valuc or foture cash flows af a financial malrument will flucluse because of changes in
tmeiny exchange rales. The Group has cxposure 1o forsign vumrency Tish where it has cash flows in overseas operations and foccipn
cumency transactions which are affected by forsign exchange movements.

‘The Group reviews flustuations in foreipn exchange rates and fakes precautionary measures to roevise ils rate quoles on 2 Tegalar basis, i
an #itempt 1o mitigale The expotuce 1o cunency risk arising from its transactions with Lour ppurater segment, if1equared.
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37 Firancial instruments (Cont.)
371 Financiel risk management (Cont.)
)y {Capital management
The primary objestive of the Company's cepital management is to cnsnre thet it maintaing e sirang tinancial position and healthy capital
Tatios in order W suppont its business and maximise shargholder valne,
The Company manages its capital structure, and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions. Teo maintain yr
adyust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, have a rights issue ar by back of shares.
The Group®s net debt to adjusted capital ratio at the reportung date was as follows,
Group Company
As ai 31 March 2z 2021 222 02l
Bs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Total liabilitics 1.823,584,787 1,490,162 411 1,478,354,310 1.1856,938.892
Less: cash and cash equivalents (1,542,250,4700  (973.238.673) {36,898,708) 8597621
Net delit 281,334,317 516,922,739 1,441,455,602 1,194 556,513
Total equity 2,756,021,880 2,250.946,733 2,043,2141,939 2,11%,551,066
Netdebt ko equity (Times) .30 .23 0.71 0.57
312 Tinunvial instruments by catepary
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The following 1able shaws the camying amounts and {air values of Onancial agsers and finaneial Nabilities, including their levels in the fair
value hierachy 1t dices not include Fair valoe information e financial assets and financial liabiluies not measvred A fair vatue i the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying
Gronp Fair valec through Amortised cust ('Ilh_c:r |I'u‘1?m:ial Total
profil or lyss liabililies
Ry Rs. Bs. Rs.

Financial assets measured at fair value
Diher investments 03,750 - = 603,750
Financial assets not measured at fwir valuz
Trade and other receivablus - 44,112,065 = 44.112.068
Amounts due from related companiss - 38,058,173 - 38,658,173
Cash and ¢ash equivalents - 1540, 757,147 L540,757.147

603.750 | 1,523.527.388 = 1,624,131,138
Financial Babilities not measured at {air value
‘Trade and other payables - 102,713,563 142,713,565
Inlerest hearing bomowings - - 1,277,081,703 1,277.081.793
Lease liabilities = 169,119,510 LAY, 112,510
Amounts due to related companics - 27,573,509 27,573,529
Bank overdrafi - - 154,595,906 154,395,006

5 = 1,720,884,303 1,730.884,303
Asat 31 March 2021
Carrying amount
Growp Fair value throngh Aranrlised cost Ulllfl‘ ll'n‘l?ucial Total
profit ar lass liabilivies
W, Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets measured at fair value
Other rvaslmenls 463,75 - 463,750
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and edher receivables - 16 603,624 16,605 424
Amounts due from relatsd - 33 498 658 - 35,498,656
Cash and vash equivalents - 971,397,102 - 971,397,102

463.730 1,021,501,384 - 1.2 1.965.134
Financial lishilitics nol measured at Fair value
Trade ant other payables - - §7,236,228 BT,236.208
[uterest bearing homrowings = 1.010.242,838 1.010.242 838
| ease liahilities - 161240 185 161,240,484
Amaounrs due to relaied companics - 25,539,974 25.538.974
Bank overdraft - - 137,122,168 137,122,168

= - 1.421.381,697 1,421.381.697
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Financial instruments (Conc)
.

Fi is] Inste by gory {Cont.)

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying amount

Company Fairzvalue Other financial -
- through profit [ Amaortised cost P l'otal
i lizhilities
nr loss
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets meaxured al fair value
Mher invesiments 603,750 - - G3,750
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables - 40,188,073 - 40,188,073
Amounts due from related companies 582,175,055 - 582175055
Cash and cash equivalents - 36,898,708 - 36,398,708
03,750 (50,261,836 = 659.865.586
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and uther payables - - 83,546,153 fi3.546,153
Inteiest bearing horrowings - - 1,104,892,558 1.104,8%2,558
Lease Habilities - - 163,335,639 163,335,634
Atnounts due o related companies - - 788,500 788500
Rank overdrail - - 62,757,875 62,757,875
= - [.415.320.725 1.415.320.725
A3 at 3 March 2021
Carrying amount
Fair value .
Company through profit | Amortised cost Ulh?r liil:'{lmml Total
ar loss liabifitres
Rs. s, Rs. Rs.
Financial assets measured at fair value
Other investments 463,750 - - 443,750
Financial assets nol measurcd at fair value
Trade and nther roccivables - 12,667 800 - 12 &67 B
Amounts due from ralated companies - 566,804,580 - 566,804,580
Cash and cash equivalents - 8,557,621 - B.59T7.621
463750 588.070.001 - 588.533.751
Financial liabilitics not measured at fair value
Trade and ather payables = - 47,907,598 &7,907 528
Interest bearing borrowings - - A62 8O3 6% 862,803,694
Lease liabilities - - 154,626,735 154,626,735
Amounts due to related companies - 2 & -
Bank overdraft - - 53,896,000 51,896.000
- - 1.139.234.027 1,135,234 027
Fair value higrar¢hy of linancial assets
The table below analyses financral mstroments carried at fair vatoe, by valuation method.
Group Company
022 20 22 2021
Rs. Rs. Hs. Rs.
Level 1 Level | Level 1 Tevel |
Other investments 603,750 463,730 6N3.750 463,730
603,750 463,730 GIE3. TS0 463.750

Dircctor's reapansibility far the Financial Sratements

Roacd of Dircelors is responsible for the preparation and faic presentation of these financial statements in accardance with Sri
lanka Accounting Standards. This respensibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining inernal coutrol relevant @
lhe proparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are fres from material wisstatement, whether due to fraud ur
zrrar, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making aceounting estimares that are reasonable in the

circumsianess.
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Going Concern

[uring the year the Company and #s fully ewned subsidiary, Tissa Resorl (Private) Limited incureed a loss after tax of Rs,
4L, TI0.5390- (2020 Ry 160, 284.364/) and Rs. 34,587 085/- (2021 - Rs. 32,341,290/5) respectvely during the year coded 31st
March 2022 und an accumnulated losses were Rs 5213652644 {2021- Bs, 283,302.3025) and Rs LOB729211/- (2021- Rs
73,384,4455) respectively at the date. Consequently. As of 31 March 2022, the Group bas reported accunmuated Josses Rs,
97, 1077436 (202 - Bs, 350,420,696/ The Management has a reasenable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
contioue its operational existence fur the fureseeable future.

However. the Group Tas prepaced the financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2022 on the basis that 0 w1l continae (o
operate as a £oing cancern, Jo determining the basis ¢f proparing the financial statements tor the year ended 31 March 2022,
based on available infarmation, the management has assessed the prevailing socioeconom:e conditions and their effeet an the
Cuompany snd the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis,

The management has formed the judgment that the Group has adequate resources Lo continue in operational cxistence for the
foresegable future driven by the continuous gperationalization of risk mitigation nigatives and monitoring of husiness cantinuily
and respanse plans al cach business unit level alonyg with the financial steength of the Liltimate Group.

Aciual ceonomic conditions arc likely to be different from these foreeast sinee wricipeted cvents frequently do not occur as
rxpected. and the effect of those differences may sipnificantly impact accounting estimates incladed In Lhese [nuovial
stafements.

Having evaluated the presentations made by the Company on their future outlook. the Dirsctors arc satistied that the Company
have adequate reseurces 0 continue 12 operations a1 least, bur not limited to. 12 menths from the reporting date, t0 justily
adopting the gnmg concarn hasis in preparing these Anancial stalements.

Impict From Rapid Change In Maceo Economic Factors

Interest Rate

The Monetary Bourd of the Csotral Bauk of S1i Lanka (CBSL) has desided 10 increase the Standing Deposil Faeility Rate
(SLFRY and the Standing Lending Facility Kate {SLFE) The depletion of forcign reserves has pul restrictions on imports and
affected supplics.

The Manetary Board af the Cenral 13ank of Sri Lanka, at its meeting held on 08 April 2022, devided 1o ingrease the Sianding
Depasit Facility Rate (SDFR) and the Slanding Lending Facility Rate {SLIR) of the Central Bank by 700 basis points to 13.50
per cent and 14,30 per cent, respectively, etfective from the close of business on 08 April 2022,

The policy response was made by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka after the reparting peried and consequently, no adjustments were
necessary to the amounts recognized in the fnancial staements.

Civen the cantimuing volatility of interest rate movement thal resulied as a consequense, and alse due 1o the fact the Company
has commenced discussions with lending instituons on several concessions on the back drop of the unprecedented impacts (o the
Twspalality indugiry { thar heing the key husiness of the company) since 2009, the Group is not able to ke an esomate of its
financial eflect with acceptahle precision.

Forvign Currency Exchange Rates

[n March 2022, the Central Dank ot Sti Lanka ahandoned the iemposary peg on 118 Dellar ¢ LK Rupec (USD ! LKR) Exchange
Ratz. The resulting impact of exchange rate movement during the perind have been adjusted to these financial statements,

The USD/ LER exchange rate continued w subslantively increass subsequent o the period end.

Manapement expect depreciatnn of rupee will alse favourably effect the revenue strearns when tourdsis arival are graduadly
improved.

Gven the contnung volatilty of VS 1LKR mevement, the Company is nol able to make an estimate of its financial offect wilh
accentable precision.

[n addition to the spacific risk assessment and miligating actions disclnsed in now 24, the Compuany has taken the fullowing
ovirall measures o ensare it continues ifs 0perations @5 a going concern.
Detailed discassinn at the fop management level Lo deolily pelential nsks and deternunation of fisk mitgation strategics.

- Assessing the possibility of restruciuring of borrowings while replacing with borrowings at [ixed interest rates for defined
period of imme.

- Ensuring that fareign curreacy denominuted investments preserved in making cash flow managemene deeisions.

The munapement of the company conlinues o monflor e potzatial impact 10 the continoity of the business. Avcordingly.
ImaALTeCononiis vanalles are evatuated while mekmg assumptions and judements when preparng linanciul statenents.
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Group Structure - Post Restructure

Ceylon Hotels
Corporation PLC

Kandy Hotels Ceylon Holiday CHC Foods
Co. 1938 PLC Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd

]
@ @

Suisse Hotel United Hotels CHC Rest Houses
(Pvt) Ltd Co. Ltd (Pvt) Ltd
Suisse Hotel Ceylon Hotels Tissa Resort
Kandy (Pvt) Ltd  Maldives (Pvt) Ltd (Pvi) Ltd

Airline Services
(Pvt) Ltd
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of Ceylon Hotels
Corporation PLC, will be held at 9.30 am on Wednesday 31" May 2023 at Sri Lanka Foundation
Institute, Colombo 07 for the following purpose:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions:
Special Resolution 1

“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, to approve as a major transaction under Section 185 of the Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007, the transfer of all the shares owned by the Company in United Hotels Company
Limited, amounting to 201,130,633 ordinary voting shares, to The Kandy Hotels Company (1938) PLC
[PQ 201], for a consideration valued at LKR 3,066,157,660/, which consideration shall be settled by
The Kandy Hotels Company (1938) PLC (‘KHC’) in the following manner:

(i) LKR 1,164,835,549/- shall be set off by KHC for the amount payable by the Company to
KHC; and

(ii) 127,093,724/- of ordinary voting shares of KHC shall be issued to the Company for the
balance consideration of LKR 1,901,322,111/, calculated at a per share value of LKR
14.96/-.

Special Resolution 2

WHEREAS, The Kandy Hotels Company (1938) PLC is a related party of the Company and the aggregate
value of the transactions with such related parties as set forth in Resolution 1 above, exceed 1/3™ of
the total assets of the Company, in terms of Rule 9.1.1 of the Listing Rules;

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the transaction as described in Resolution 1 be approved as a non-
recurrent related party transaction under Rule 9.1.1. of the Listing Rules of the CSE.

By order of the Board of Directors of
CEYLON HOTELS CORPORATION PLC

. .52ﬁ33?‘_;}
-

Accounting Systems Secretarial Services (Private) Limited
SECRETARIES
On this 19'" day of April 2023
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Note:

70

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her. A Proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

The completed Form of Proxy should be received by the Company at its Registered Office at
No. 327, Union Place, Colombo 02 not later than 48 hours before the start of the meeting.

A Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice.
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FORM OF PROXY

CEYLON HOTELS CORPORATION PLC- PB 3283
No. 327, Union Place, Colombo 2

I/WE ettt et aa e et et ea et et ea e et e ea e et A st et a b et e et enteae et et ensetesraetee et erssan s e s
(NIC NO.) oo Ottt ettt

beingamember/membersof Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC, hereby .........ccocevivvviveireveceeeireeevereveireeenenes

APPOINT vt erresr e esrensess s sesensenssseee s O ettt ereens

Mr Lakshman Samarasinghe of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Sanjeev Gardiner of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Priyantha Maddumage of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Kuvera De Zoysa of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Mangala Boyagoda of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Kamantha Amarasekara of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Ajith Devasurendra of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Ranil Pathirana of Colombo (or failing him)
Mr Shalike Karunasena of Colombo

as my/our Proxy to represent and speak and vote for me/us* and on my/our behalf at the Extraordinary General Meeting
ofthe Companytobeheldon..........and atany adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence
thereon.

I/We* the undersigned, hereby direct my/our* proxy to speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf on the
resolution set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as follows:

For Against
1. Special Resolution 01
2. Special Resolution 02
In witness my/our* hands this .......cccoceeeevieresneisesnienneens Ay Of e e Two Thousand

and Twenty Three.

Signature

Notes: * Instructions as to completion appear overleaf.
s

Pleaseindicate withan “x” inthe space provided, howyour Proxyistovote onthe Resolutions.Ifnoindication is
given, the Proxy in his discretion will vote as he thinks fit.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION

1.

Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy by filling in legibly your full name, address and the National
Identity Card number and by signing in the space provided and filling in the date of
signature.

The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at Company Secretaries and Registrars, Messrs
Accounting Systems Secretarial Services (Private) Limited, Level 03,No.11, Castle Lane, Colombo 4
not laterthan 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting.

If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman or a Director of the Company, please insert the
relevant details at the space provided (above the names of the Board of Directors) on the Proxy
Form.

Ifthe Formof Proxyissigned byanAttorney, therelative Power of Attorneyshouldaccompanythe
Formof Proxy for registration if such Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the
Company.

If the appointor is a Company/ Incorporated body, this Form must be executed in accordance with the
Articles of Association/ Statute.
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